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Our vision: Helping children to live safe, happy and successful lives.
Our promises:
We will put children and young people first
We will value and invest in our staff to deliver innovative and quality services
We will embrace diversity and champion inclusion
We will be resourceful, adaptable and dependable
We will nurture strong, responsive and caring relationships
We will work with our customers to deliver the most effective solutions for them

This Annual Report summarises the performance of Achieving for Children for the period between 1
April 2016 and 31 March 2017 and has been authorised for issue by the Board of Directors.

Nick Whitfield
Chief Executive
3 July 2017

ACHIEVING FOR CHILDREN CIC - ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17

Page 2

COMPANY INFORMATION
REGISTRATION:
Achieving for Children Community Interest Company
Registered in England and Wales as a Private Limited Company
Registration Number 08878185
OWNERSHIP DETAILS:
The Company is jointly and equally owned by the Royal Borough of Kingston upon
Thames and the London Borough of Richmond upon Thames. The Company is limited
by guarantee.
REGISTERED OFFICE:
Gifford House
67c St Helier Avenue
Morden
SM4 6HY
AUDITOR:
Grant Thornton UK LLP
Grant Thornton House
Melton Street
Euston Square
London NW1 2EP
SOLICITORS:
South London Legal Partnership
Gifford House
67c St Helier Avenue
Morden
SM4 6HY
BANK DETAILS:
National Westminster Bank
25 King Street
Twickenham
TW1 3SU

COMPANY DIRECTORS and OFFICERS:
See page 21 of the Annual Report
WEBSITE:
achievingforchildren.org.uk

ACHIEVING FOR CHILDREN CIC - ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17

Page 3

STATEMENT BY THE CHAIR OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Statement by the Chair of the Board of Directors
I am pleased to present Achieving for Children’s Annual Report. 2016/17 was our third year of
business delivering services to children and their families in Kingston and Richmond upon Thames.
We are now firmly established as a provider of children’s services and have been nationally
recognised for the innovation and quality of our services. We successfully won £7.6 million funding
from the Department for Education as part of their Partners in Practice programme to transform
children’s social work over the next four years. Over the last two years we have supported the
improvement of children’s social care services in Doncaster, Reading and Wandsworth; in
Sunderland we have also worked with the Council and its partners to improve children’s services by
establishing their own social enterprise - Together for Children. We also continue to provide
effective support and challenge to local schools, which remain amongst the best in London, and
have extended our services to deliver improvement support to schools in East Sussex.
In Kingston and Richmond our focus has been on implementing a new operating model which brings
professionals together into three locality teams to encourage integrated working and improve the
experience of the children and families who access our social care services. Employees have been
relocated in three buildings within each locality and we have implemented new mobile technology
so that professionals are able to spend more time working directly with families. At the same time
we have made steady progress in delivering our other major projects, including work to develop a
supported accommodation unit for care leavers, two residential children’s homes and a centre of
excellence for children with disabilities in Kingston.
Looking forward, we are delighted to be welcoming the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead
into Achieving for Children in August 2017. This is the first success in our Growth Strategy which
aims to see the company grow by admitting up to four new members over the next ten years. The
financial challenges remain and the demand for our services is increasing; however, we are
confident that our Business Plan provides the solutions we need to protect the essential services on
which our children and families depend.
None of this would have been possible without strong leadership and the professionalism and
diligence of our employees. The Board look forward to continuing working with them in the coming
year to ensure that we deliver the best possible outcomes for children and families in Kingston,
Richmond and Windsor and Maidenhead, as well as remaining at the cutting-edge of children’s
services nationwide.

David Groves
Chair of the Board of Directors
3 July 2017
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1. Introduction by the Chief Executive
2016/17 has been a year of national achievement and recognition. We were named Social Work
Employer of the Year in November 2016; our Youth Offending Service became the first in London to
achieve the Restorative Service Quality Mark; our substance misuse services for young people won a
national award from the NHS Stop Smoking Service; and we secured £7.6 million of funding to
improve children’s social work practice as part of the Partners in Practice programme.
Throughout the year, we have remained focused on delivering the best possible services to local
children and their families. We have re-shaped our early help and social care services by introducing
a new locality model to better support children and their families at an early stage. And in
partnership with our schools, we have continued to support our pupils to achieve excellent results.
94% of pupils in Kingston and Richmond now attend a good or outstanding school and our schools
are amongst the highest achieving nationally at both Key Stage 2 and Key Stage 4. Ensuring sufficient
school places has also been a significant achievement this year, and we have supported eight free
school submissions to increase the school choices available to children and young people.
Our employees remain the key to our success. Their support and dedication, and the positive
relationships they build as champions for children and families, has enabled us to maintain the
delivery of highly effective services at a time of considerable financial constraint.
Next year will undoubtedly be a challenge; however, by carefully and safely managing the demand
for services, continuing to make our business processes more efficient, and developing our business
model beyond Kingston and Richmond, we will be able to achieve the long-term sustainability of the
company. I am confident about that future and know that, thanks to the vision of our owning
Councils, Board Directors and senior leaders, backed by our talented employees and supported by
our strategic partners, we will achieve even more for children, helping them to live safe, happy and
successful lives.

Nick Whitfield
Chief Executive of Achieving for Children
3 July 2017
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2. Our achievements against our 2016-17 objectives
This section sets out the progress we have made against the objectives in our Business Plan for
2016-17. Further information can be found in the Impact Report which is published on our website.
Developing supported accommodation so that more looked after children and care leavers live in
safe and stable placements in the local area
•

To broaden the choice of local supported accommodation, we have changed the way in
which we commission support for care leavers. Our new approach enables us to achieve
better value for money by directly comparing providers offering similar accommodation and
support. A review of existing placements has highlighted that some care leavers are in
accommodation and have support packages that do not reflect their assessed level of need.
We have worked with these care leavers to find more appropriate placements aimed at
supporting them to become fully independent.

•

We are developing a placement commissioning team to identify and negotiate the costs of
placements for children in care and care leavers. This has relieved the pressure on social
workers and enabled them to spend more time working directly with children and their
families. The new team will introduce a clear contract management structure, and apply
rigour, consistency and quality assurance across providers, especially within the unregulated
leaving care sector. In the future, the remit of the team will grow to include placements for
children with special educational needs and disabilities.

•

We are working with Kingston Council to refurbish a residential care home for older people
to provide supported accommodation for 17 care leavers. Care leavers and local residents
have contributed to the design and operating model for the building and will form part of its
management group. The building will be ready for occupation in October 2017.

•

Through Better by Design, we have worked with young people with particularly challenging
behaviour to help them manage their own difficulties in a more constructive way and
change the way they relate to others. As a result of this intensive intervention, we have
supported 14 young people to return home from care, stabilised 22 foster care and
residential placements, and prevented 31 young people from entering the care system.

•

Work is underway to develop two residential children’s homes in Kingston and Richmond to
provide accommodation and integrated support for ten children in care. The residential
homes are planned to open by September 2019.

Integrating care and support for children and young people with special educational needs and
disabilities within their local communities
•

We are working with Kingston Council to develop a new eight-bed facility at Moor Lane in
Chessington to provide overnight short break care for children and young people with SEND.
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Children and young people using the facility will benefit from the wide range of services
provided at Moor Lane, including children’s social care, health services, therapies, family
support and an accessible playground. Preliminary designs for the building have been
created with the help of existing service users and their families. The facility is planned to be
ready for occupation in autumn 2018.
•

In close consultation with SEND Family Voices, a local charity representing parents of
children with SEND, we have revised the home-to-school transport offer for children with
SEND. The new offer aligns provision across Kingston and Richmond and reflects new
statutory guidance. It also seeks to facilitate more young people with SEND to learn travel
skills so that they can travel independently using a broader range of transport options.

•

We have undertaken a full and comprehensive review of the Integrated Service for Children
with Disabilities and will be implementing recommendations to improve the experiences of
families who use the service.

•

Working collaboratively with SEND Family Voices, we have produced the Golden Binder, a
resource for parents and carers which brings together guidance on the support available to
children and young people with SEND. The Golden Binder is jointly owned by a working
group of professionals, from Achieving for Children and other partners, and parents who are
responsible for keeping it up to date and ensuring any changes are made in consultation
with all members of the working group.

•

The Home and Community Support Service at the Windham Croft Centre, which provides
short break care for children and young people with learning disabilities, autistic spectrum
disorders or physical disabilities, received an overall rating of good following an inspection in
2016, with individual ratings of good for the service being safe, effective, caring, responsive
and well-led.

Supporting children and young people to make good progress and achieve well in their education
by attending a good or outstanding local school
•

94% of pupils in Kingston and Richmond now attend a school which is judged to be good or
outstanding by Ofsted, with Kingston placed second in the Ofsted national league table of
good or outstanding schools.

•

75% of pupils in Kingston and 77% of pupils in Richmond achieved a good level of
development in the Early Years Foundation Stage. This means both boroughs are
significantly above the national average of 69% and represents an improvement of 3%
points in Kingston and 6% points in Richmond since last year.

•

At Key Stage 2, pupils’ outcomes in reading and mathematics are in line or above national
averages at the expected and higher standards. Richmond is placed third for the combined
expected standard and first nationally for the greater depth measure.

ACHIEVING FOR CHILDREN CIC - ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17

Page 7

STRATEGIC REPORT
•

78% of pupils in Kingston and 71% of pupils in Richmond achieved an A*-C grade in English
and mathematics, whilst 48% and 42% achieved the English Baccalaureate. This means both
boroughs are above the national averages of 63% for A* to C grades and 25% for the English
Baccalaureate. These figures place Kingston first and Richmond fourth nationally for the
English Baccalaureate.

•

We have worked alongside education providers in both boroughs to support the submission
of applications for eight free schools. This includes: primary schools in Surbiton and
Teddington; secondary schools in Kingston town centre and Mortlake; special schools in
Barnes, Chessington and Twickenham; and alternative provision in Richmond borough.

•

We have worked closely with Clarendon School and Strathmore Special Schools to establish
the Auriga Academy Trust and to complete and submit applications for two free schools for
pupils with SEND. This new free schools would enable more children and young people with
SEND to be educated locally, rather than having long home-to-school journeys by minibus
every day or needing to attend residential schools outside Kingston and Richmond.

•

We have worked with the Education Funding Agency, education providers, and Kingston and
Richmond Councils to secure permanent accommodation for a number of approved free
schools including Deer Park Primary School, GEMS Kingston Primary Academy, Kingston
Community School and Turing House School. Deer Park Primary School now has planning
permission for its permanent site in an innovative, mixed development with a Lidl
supermarket – a national first.

•

In the light of national changes to school improvement services, a new business plan for our
education support service, SPARK, has developed, which will ensure optimum support for
schools and maintain our current investment in educational achievement.

•

We have designed and implemented an improved process for parents who wish to apply to
defer their child’s entry to mainstream primary school. The new process is better
signposted, more transparent and easier for parents to understand.

Transforming our business infrastructure so that the company operates efficiently and effectively
and is able to deliver excellent services to children and young people
•

We have successfully implemented a new operational model for the delivery of early help
and children’s social care services. Professionals have been allocated to three locality teams
which will enable services to work more closely together and improve the experience of
children, young people and their families.

•

To support the implementation of the locality model, we have reduced our office
accommodation and relocated the company into three main office buildings. This will enable
us to deliver savings which can be reinvested into frontline services.
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•

We have upgraded our ICT infrastructure to facilitate mobile working and enabled our staff
to be more efficient in the delivery of excellent services. We have provided all employees
with Modern Desktop which gives them remote access to all their systems and we have also
started to upgrade their hardware to lightweight mobile devices.

Investing in our workforce so that they are skilled and motivated to deliver the best possible
services to children and young people
•

We were named Social Work Employer of the Year for 2016 in recognition of our clear
professional framework for social workers and our strong learning and development offer.
The awards were founded in 2006 with the aim of improving the understanding and
reputation of the social work profession.

•

Our Youth Offending Service has become the first in London to achieve the Restorative
Service Quality Mark (RSQM). The RSQM is a badge of quality which demonstrates that a
service provides safe, high quality restorative practice which meets the six Restorative
Service Standards.

•

Our Young People’s Substance Misuse Service has been recognised as the Best Specialist
External Organisation by Kingston Kick-It, which is part of the NHS Stop Smoking Service, for
the effectiveness of their smoking cessation work in schools.

•

We are implementing the Signs of Safety framework and developing safeguarding practice
hubs to improve the way we work with families to protect children from harm. This will
involve training all our practitioners and managers to enable families to identify solutions to
the difficult situations in which they find themselves.

•

To attract and retain experienced and well-qualified practitioners and managers, we have
improved our recruitment and retention scheme, and implemented a new flexible working
framework. This will help to ensure Achieving for Children remains an employer of choice.
Within social care, this has enabled us to reduce the vacancy rate from 27% in 2014/15 to
8% in 2016/17.

•

We have introduced a new professional development scheme in response to feedback from
staff in our bi-annual staff survey. The new scheme is focused on identifying and meeting
the learning and career development needs of the workforce.

•

We have successfully implemented a talent management scheme that will enable the
company to identify, develop, engage and retain future leaders at all levels of the company.
Six employees have been selected for the scheme which includes coaching, action-learning,
organisational raids as well as bespoke learning and development opportunities.

•

We delivered training and development to 25,618 delegates in 1,210 different subject areas.
94% of delegates reported that the training had a positive impact on their practice.
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Securing new business opportunities so that we are able to invest in those services that make a
difference to children and families.
•

We have been awarded £7.6 million over four years from the national Partners in Practice
Programme led by the Department for Education. The funding will enable us to implement
an innovative programme in Kingston and Richmond to prevent young people entering the
care system, and will also involve us working with local authorities nationwide to improve
the delivery of children’s social care services.

•

The Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead will be admitted as a new Member of
Achieving for Children following agreement between the founding Councils. Staff will be
transferred into the company and we will take on responsibility for delivering their children’s
services from August 2017.

•

We secured £950,000 in funding from the Department for Education’s Early Years Capital
Fund to increase the sufficiency of early years’ places in Kingston and Richmond. This will be
used to increase the capacity at one setting, to undertake a complete refurbishment at
another setting, and to build an entirely new nursery education facility.

•

We were admitted to the Department for Education’s Framework for Intervention Advisors
and became the improvement adviser to Reading and Wandworth Councils in addition to
the improvement support we are providing to eight other local authorities.

3. Risks and risk management
Our risk management framework helps to ensure we identify and manage key risks that could affect
our ability to deliver Company objectives. The management of risk is embedded in our day to day
business activities, and well-established processes and policies are in place. All of our employees
have a role in reducing risk through our internal control framework. Risks are recorded in a risk
register which is regularly reviewed by the Senior Leadership Team and the Audit and Risk
Committee of the Board of Directors. The risk register includes strategic and operational risks.
Strategic risks are the direct responsibility of the Senior Leadership Team and concern the overall
direction of the Company and its sustainability. Operational risks concern day to day activities
which need to be managed in order for services to be delivered. They are managed by individual
service managers and are regularly reported to service directors.
Details of the Company’s financial instrument risks are set out in Note 23 of our accounts. These are
not regarded as material to an understanding of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit
or loss of the Company.
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RISK DESCRIPTION
Failure to control
escalating placement costs
for children in care, young
people leaving care and
children with SEND.

IMPACT OF RISK
Unsustainable financial
position for the company and
the Councils. Financial
efficiencies will need to be
made in other essential
services with a potential
reduction in the support and
services provided to children,
young people and their
families. This may lead to
escalating concerns or needs
and additional demands for
other children's services.

Failure to provide
sufficient, appropriate and
timely support to children
and young people with
SEND and their parents.

Children and young people
with SEND do not receive a
coherent service that meets
their assessed needs leading
to poor quality outcomes. The
company fails to meet its
statutory responsibilities to
children with SEND leading to
adverse Tribunal judgements
and increased costs. There is a
poor working relationship
with local parents and
reputational damage to the
company.

Failure to plan for the
admission of RBWM into
the company, including the
efficient transfer of
employees, budgets,
services and statutory
obligations. The key
contractual
documentation is not in
place prior to the planned
admission on 1 August
2017.

Organisational disruption
leading to operational
instability and/or inefficiency.
Systems and processes are
ineffective meaning that the
organisation is not compliant
with statutory requirements
and local policies. Employee
turnover in RBWM increases
due to uncertainty and lack of
strategic direction and
operational clarity. The
budget and financial
mechanisms are not sufficient
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Open framework agreement and
dynamic purchasing system in place for
the procurement of care and SEND
placements. A placement commissioning
team has been recruited to manage the
identification and purchase of
placements in line with children's
identified needs, and to provide
challenge to social work managers where
more cost-effective placements may
provide similar or improved outcomes
for children and young people.
Strengthened decision-making and
approval processes have been
established including Director of
Children’s Services agreement to
placements over £2,500 per week.
Monthly financial monitoring is in place
with oversight and scrutiny by the senior
leadership team and reporting to the
Board of Directors and Councils.
There is a clear improvement plan in
place which is regularly monitored to
ensure continual improvement of SEND
services. The plan includes key
performance indicators to give early
warning if service quality and reliability
starts to reduce. There are clear
mechanisms in place to engage, involve
and communicate with children, young
people and families to gather feedback
on the quality and effectiveness of
services and plan improvement.
Additional staffing resources have been
agreed to manage the increased demand
for services.
The business case includes due diligience
analysis of the financial position and
service quality and gives a benchmark for
contractual performance. The process for
Council decision-making has been agreed
and will be completed by 4 July 2017.
Three-way Council processes are in place
to agree governance and commissioning
arrangements as well as to revise
contract documentation. The company is
advised by Burges Salmon LLP on the
governance arrangements and contract
documentation. A Programme Board has
been established to manage the transfer
Page 11
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The company does not
have the capacity to
achieve the savings
required from efficiency
programmes and lacks the
authority needed to make
the timely decisions due to
the control requirements
of the owning Councils.

The company is unable to
sustain the existing high
quality level of service
delivery due to significant
reductions in government
grants and local funding
from the Councils.

Failure to have fully
integrated ICT and
business systems which
effectively support the
delivery of services.

IMPACT OF RISK
to deliver the commissioned
services and manage demand.
Service quality decreases and
leads to poorer outcomes for
children, young people and
families. Corrective action and
increased senior management
oversight is required, and
there is reputational damage
to the company if services in
RBWM are ineffective or do
not improve.

Financial savings are not
achieved and lead to
increased budget pressures
and the need to reduce
employee and service budgets
without effective planning
and impact analysis.
Reductions in financial
resources lead to service
reductions and poor quality
services leaving children and
young people without
effective support.
Reductions in non-statutory
services are necessary. The
company is unable to meet its
existing contractual
obligations and does not have
sufficient capacity to maintain
services with a potential
reduction in the support and
services provided to children,
young people and their
families. This may lead to
escalating concerns or needs
and additional demands for
other children's services.
There is a negative impact on
efficiency, productivity and
service delivery leading to
poorer outcomes for children
and young people. Business
processes are duplicative.
Information is inaccessible
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of employees and services from RBWM
to the company. Task and Finish groups
are in place to manage the operational
and technical aspects of the admission:
HR (TUPE transfer); ICT; business
processes; finance; assets; and service
design. It has been agreed that support
services arrangements will be provided
by RBWM until 1 April 2018 and the
process for the agreement of support
service arrangements is underway. A
lessons learned analysis will be
completed at the end of the RBWM
admission to inform any future
expansion of the company by admitting
new members.

A project management approach has
been implemented to ensure clear
financial planning is in place to deliver
financial efficiencies. Regular monitoring
and reporting is in place through the
Programme Board to ensure that
financial efficiencies are delivered. A risk
and issue log is in place for all savings
plans. Processes are in place with the
Councils to agree invest to save
proposals. There is regular reporting and
scrutiny on the achievement of efficiency
savings to the senior leadership team,
the Board of Directors and the Councils.

An ICT strategy and action plan is in place
which sets out the road map for
development ICT provision over the next
3 to 5 years. ICT network and
infrastructure services are provided by
Kingston and Sutton Shared ICT Service.
Applications support is provided inPage 12
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IMPACT OF RISK
RISK MITIGATION
and prevents effective
house. Governance of all ICT issues is
information sharing including
provided through the Business Systems
the ability to safeguarding
Board which has representation from all
children where they are at risk
relevant partners. Project management
of harm. The chances of poor
support is allocated for all systems
information governance
development outlined in the strategy and
practices are increased if
budget has been agreed with the
employees bypass existing
Councils.
business processes.

4. Our Finances
The Company was incorporated on 5th February 2014 and commenced trading on 1 April 2014. The
majority of its revenue comes from its contract with the two owning Councils for the provision of
children’s services. This income totalled £110 million in 2016/17 (£107m in 2015/16) which
represents 90% (88% in 2015/16) of total income (on a management accounts rather than financial
accounts basis).
Management Accounts Position
The Company underspent by £142k in 2016/17 (overspend by £16k in 2015/16), after allowing for
contract changes associated with demand led pressures and one off redundancy costs. The
Company incurred direct expenditure of £122 million (£121.9 million in 2015/16) in the delivery of
services. This expenditure includes grant payments totalling £14million (£15.2million in 2015/16)
to schools and nurseries made on behalf of the two contracting Councils. These transactions are
excluded from the financial accounts because the Company is just administering the money and
does not have discretion over how the money is spent.
Demand led budgets remain the biggest financial pressure for the Company and have been the
subject of significant contract price adjustments during the year. The two key areas affected are
Social Care and SEN Transport. The final management outturn (after demand led contract price
increases) is as follows:
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Kingston Social Care
Richmond Social Care
SEN & Children with Disabilities
Early Help
SEN Transport
Education Services
Total Operational Functions
Standards and Improvement
Finance and Resources
Strategic Management
Total Company Functions
TOTAL (underspend)

Expenditure

(Income)

Overspend/
(Underspend)

£000

£000

£000

12,256
14,439
50,355
12,746
6,536
6,894
103,226

12,248
14,439
50,136
12,814
6,536
6,888
103,061

8
0
219
-68
0
6
165

4,244
13,798
727
18,769

4,179
14,281
616
19,076

65
-483
111
-307

121,995

122,137

-142

Financial Statements
For the reporting period the Company made a trading loss of £2.048 million and reported a total
comprehensive expense of £12.676 million (income in 2015/16 of £4.857 million) which is
attributable in equal proportion to its parent Councils. The loss comprises:

Trading Profit / (loss)
Other comprehensive expense (re-measure of net defined
benefit liability)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income

2016/17
£000
-2,048

2015/16
£000
-4,101

-10,628
-12,676

8,958
4,857

For the reporting period, the main differences between the Company’s outturn in its management
accounts report and its trading loss reported in the Statement of Comprehensive Income (page 32)
are related to pension adjustments under IAS 19. The difference between the loss from continuing
operations (£2.048 million) and the position for total comprehensive expense of £12.676 million
profit is also due to re-measurement of the pension liability under IAS 19. A full reconciliation
between the management accounts position and the financial accounts position is detailed in Note
9 to the Accounts.
The Statement of Financial Position, or Balance Sheet, includes a net pension liability of £28.219
million (£15.516 million at 31 March 2016). This change reflects a decrease in the discount rate
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used to calculate the present value of liabilities. The majority of the Company’s employees are
members of the Local Government pension Scheme (LGPS) which is a defined benefit scheme.
When the Company started trading on 1 April 2014, the majority of its staff transferred their
employment from the Councils into the Company under TUPE, which included transferring their
membership of the LGPS to the Company. The Company is an employer in the LGPS scheme, within
the two pension funds administered by both Councils.
The net pension liability at 31 March 2017 is calculated under the provisions of IAS19 whereas the
employer’s pension contributions that the Company actually makes to the pension funds are based
on an actuarial valuation undertaken under the rules of the LGPS. The Company’s contributions are
re-assessed at each triennial valuation for pension funds in the LGPS. The most recent valuation
was carried out as at 31 March 2016 and has resulted in an increase in employer contribution rates
from 15.5% to 16% (effective April 2017). The next triennial valuation is due as at 31 March 2019.
The Company holds assets (trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, non-current
assets) totalling £28.224 million at 31 March 2017 (£25.590 million at 31 March 2016). The
majority relates to Trade and Other Receivables and Cash and Cash Equivalents. This reflects the
control that the Councils exert over the Company and the implications of Achieving for Children
being constituted as a Community Interest Company (CIC) – the consequences being that the
Company is subject to an ‘asset lock’ as a CIC and the Councils have decided that the Company
should not own any significant value of assets. The assets that it does own are IT-related and have a
relatively short economic life.
Financial Support from the Company’s Owners
The Councils are contracted with the Company for a minimum period of seven years from 1st April
2014 (five years remaining from 1 April 2016) with an option to extend the contract period by
another five years. The contract price is agreed annually to take into account changes in service
requirements, inflationary and other cost pressures on the Company, and the need for efficiency
savings to be identified so that the Company can deliver value for money and contribute to both
Councils’ overall financial targets.
In addition to the annual review of the contract price, the Company can request additional funding
under a ‘change control’ provision in the contract when the Company is faced with additional costs,
for example from increases in the number of children requiring services.
In terms of its liquidity, the Company can borrow from the Councils under the Revolving Credit
Facility of £30 million. This provides funding to the Company to cover cash flow, losses and any
investment requirements.
Future Financial Plans
The Company has prepared a Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) which forecasts its income and
expenditure and financial risks over the next three years (to 2020/21). The primary purpose of the
MTFP is to demonstrate to the parent Councils that the Company has adequate financial plans,
including efficiency savings, to meet its budget over the medium term.
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As part of its commitment to providing value for money in the provision of children’s services, the
Company has made efficiency savings of £7.7 million between 2014/15 and 2016/17. Its future
plans include savings of a further £7 million, to March 2021, which are planned to be delivered
through programmes in the business plan that are summarised in the next section.
The company will expand significantly with the admission of the Royal Borough of Windsor and
Maidenhead (RBWM) that is planned for 1 August 2017. RBWM will become a member of the
company, its staff will transfer into the company and AfC will provide its children’s services under a
contract. The exact terms are still to be settled but this addition is likely to increase turnover by up
to 33%.
Going Concern
The track record of the Company and its management in delivering savings together with existing
and future plans and the financial support of the parent Councils provide the Company with
sufficient evidence to judge that it is trading as a going concern.

5. Looking Forward
In addition to the assimilation of RBWM into the company, our focus over the next three years will
be on the delivery of safe and high quality services for children and families. We will ensure our early
help offer remains strong, our children’s social care services effectively safeguard children and
young people, and that we meet the needs of those with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities
(SEND). We will maintain our reputation as an excellent provider of educational support services,
while continuing to meet demand for additional school places.
In addition to our everyday work, we progress the expansion of Achieving for Children and will look
to embed the new locality-based delivery model for early help and social care services to ensure
sustainability and continued improvement. We will develop plans to introduce our own residential
care for looked-after children, accommodation for care leavers, and short break facilities for young
people with SEND as part of improving services and reducing costs.
Our Business Plan summary below sets out the key programmes we will be undertaking between
2016 and 2019:
Programme 1:

Programme 2:

Developing supported accommodation so that
more looked-after children and care leavers live
in safe and stable placements in the local area.

Integrating care and support for children and
young people with special educational needs and
disabilities within their local communities.
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Programme 3:

Programme 4:

Supporting children and young people to make
good progress and achieve well in their
education by attending a good or outstanding
local school.

Transforming our business infrastructure so that
the Company operates efficiently and effectively
and is able to deliver excellent services to
children and their families.

Programme 5:

Programme 6:

Investing in our workforce so that they are
skilled and motivated to deliver the best possible
services to children and young people.

Securing new business opportunities so that we
are able to invest in those services that make a
difference to children and families.

Signed on behalf of the Board:

David Groves
Chair of the Board of Directors
3 July 2017
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6. Our Company and our governance arrangements
6.1 Achieving for Children as a Company
We deliver education and children’s services to children and families in Kingston and Richmond
upon Thames. Our services fall into six areas shown in the diagram below. Taken together, these
services describe how we will deliver our ambition to ensure that all children and young people live
safe, happy and successful lives.
Early Help
• Childcare
• Early years education
• Children’s centres
• Family support
• Targeted youth support
• School attendance
• Education welfare
• Youth services
• Substance misuse services
Education
• School place planning
• School admissions
• Student services
• School improvement
• School leadership development
• Alternative education provision
• Governor support
• Apprenticeships and access to employment
Business Services
• ICT and business systems
• Performance and business intelligence
• Quality assurance
• Strategy and policy development
• Service improvement
• Commissioning support
• Workforce development
• Marketing and communications
• Business development
• Financial planning and monitoring
• Accountancy services
• Schools’ finance
• School building development

Social Care
• Statutory assessments and care planning
• Services for looked-after children and care
leavers
• Fostering
• Adoption

Special Educations Needs and Disabilities
• Educational psychology
• Special educational needs
• Integrated services for children with disabilities
• Emotional health and wellbeing
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Our workforce
In 2016-17, we employed 688 full-time equivalent staff from a broad range of professional disciplines
including social work, teaching, health services and public sector management.
We work hard to ensure that our workforce represents the diversity of the children and young people
we work with. We are also committed to the recruitment, continuing employment, training, career
development and promotion of people with disabilities. In 2016-17:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•

78% of our employees were female;
15% of our employees were from a Black, Asian or Minority Ethnic (BAME) background.
6% of our employees reported that they had a disability.
The largest faith group in the company is Christian (35%). Employees with no faith or religion
or who did not declare their religion or belief account for 58% of the workforce.
The majority of employees are aged 25 to 54 (77%); 6% are under 25 and 2% are over 65.
54% of our employees are heterosexual; 2% are gay, lesbian or bi-sexual; and the sexual
orientation of 44% is either not known, they declined to specify or preferred not to say.
16% of our employees are married or in a civil partnership; 8% are single; 2% are co-habiting;
2% have a partner; 1% are divorced; and under 1% are separated. The marital status of 71%
of our employees is not known.
75% of our employees who earn over £50,000 are female; 5% of these employees have a
disability; and 10% of these employees are BME.

To ensure our employees are kept informed, consulted and involved in the development of the
company we have established a number of regular communication channels. E-mail briefings are sent
out to all employees weekly and there is a regular blog by the Chief Executive and other senior
leaders. Senior leaders also hold regular drop-in sessions with employees to provide them with an
opportunity to raise issues and concerns. There is an annual management conference and regular
management meetings with representation from across the company. Managers are responsible for
feeding back information to employees through regular team meetings and supervision. Companywide briefings are held when required. The work of the Board of Directors is shared with employees
through meeting summaries which are produced after each Board meeting. The Non-Executive
Independent Directors also visit services to meet and speak with employees so that they have a
rounded understanding of the services provided to children and their families.
The Staff Council brings together employees from different teams and services in the company. Their
role is to collect the views of colleagues and represent these to senior leaders in order to shape the
effective operation of services and the future direction of the company. In the past year, the Staff
Council has focused on reviewing and updating the staff awards scheme and improving the working
environment for employees. There are also a number of other staff engagement mechanisms, such as
the i-Hub innovation academy which seeks to harness and develop the entrepreneurial ideas of our
employees.
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Our partners
We know that excellent children’s services cannot be delivered in isolation. We have worked with
health services, the police, schools and organisations in the voluntary sector to make sure our services
are relevant and responsive to the needs of local children and families. The company represent the
interests of children’s services on a number of statutory partnership bodies, including the Health and
Wellbeing Boards, Community Safety Partnerships and the Local Safeguarding Children Boards.
Our commitment to partnership working is evident in the way in which we engage with children and
young people. We know that children and young people are best supported if they are able to shape
and determine the services they and their families receive. Our Engagement Strategy sets out how we
work together so that children, young people, parents and carers have opportunities to influence the
design, commissioning, delivery and evaluation of our services so that they are better able to meet
their needs now and in the future.

6.2 Governance
Ownership
The Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames and the London Borough of Richmond upon Thames are
the joint and equal owners of Achieving for Children, which is a community interest company limited
by guarantee. Their responsibilities and the ownership decisions they must make are set out in an
inter-authority agreement. The Councils fulfil their ownership role through a Joint Committee. The
Committee is responsible for ensuring that the Company operates and develops in accordance with
the wishes of both Councils. Decisions about the services that are commissioned from Achieving for
Children are delegated to a Children’s Commissioning Board. An Operational Commissioning Group is
responsible for monitoring how well the Company performs in terms of financial management and the
services we provide.
Financial Governance Arrangements
The Council owners exert a degree of financial control over the Company. In particular the owners
have to approve:
•
•
•

The Company’s business plan, including its budget
The Company’s financial plan and any borrowing, credit facility or investment
arrangements
Any contract for revenue expenditure that has a total value of more than £10 million or
any capital investment of more than £10,000

The Councils provide funding to the Company through a Revolving Credit Facility. This is a short-term
loan facility that provides working capital, investment finance and funds any losses for the Company.
The Councils closely monitor the Company’s financial performance through the Operational
Commissioning Group.
In addition to the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, as a community interest company
Achieving for Children is governed by the Companies (Audit, Investigations and Community Enterprise)
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Act 2004 and the Community Interest Company Regulations 2005. The Company is established as a
not-for-profit organisation and seeks to provide value for money services to the Councils – any surplus
that is made is earmarked for investment in children’s services. The Company trades primarily with its
parent Councils and other entities involved in providing children’s services within the UK. The
company is domiciled in the UK for tax purposes. The Company does not make any donations or
provide any support to political parties.
Board of Directors
The Board comprises of three executive directors, two non-executive directors that are serving
officers of the Councils (Council appointed directors) and four non-executive independent directors.
All directors were in post for the whole of 2016/17 except for Ian Dodds (appointed 1 October 2016).
The Councils, as owners of the company, reserve the power to appoint all directors.
The governance arrangements for the company are set out in its Articles of Association. Board
Directors are appointed for the skills and experience that they bring, and have responsibility for
overseeing the management of the company and for providing advice to the owners on its future
direction and strategy. Each of the four Non-Executive Independent Directors leads on a particular
service area or priority and regularly visit services to meet with employees and service-users in order
to maintain an overview of performance.
Directors of the Company in 2016/17 were:
Nick Whitfield
Robert Henderson
Ian Dodds
Cathy Kerr
Leigh Whitehouse
David Groves
David Archibald
Gill Holmes
Jane Spencer

Achieving for Children Chief Executive
Achieving for Children Deputy Chief Executive
Achieving for Children Deputy Chief Executive (with effect from 1
October 2017)
Council Appointed Non-Executive Director- Richmond
Council Appointed Non-Executive Director- Kingston
Non-Executive Independent Director; and Chair of the Board of
Directors
Non-Executive Independent Director; and Board lead on Children’s
Social Care
Non-Executive Independent Director; and Board lead on Business
Development
Non-Executive Independent Director; and Board lead on Education
Services

In addition to the appointment of Ian Dodds, two other changes were made to the roles of the
Executive Directors with effect from 1 October 2016 - Robert Henderson was appointed Joint Director
of Children’s Services for Richmond and Kingston Councils in the place of Nick Whitfield, who
remained as Chief Executive of the Company. As the Joint Director of Children’s Services has to be an
employee of the Councils, this post is a ‘Seconded Director’ and terms and conditions of service are
determined by the Councils. Executive Directors that are not ‘Seconded Directors’, whilst appointed
by the Councils are employees of the Company and their terms and conditions are a matter for the
Company.
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Board Committee Meetings and Attendance
The Board has established an Audit and Risk Committee to liaise with the company’s internal and
external auditors and advise the Board on audit and risk matters. The Committee has reviewed risk
management and assurance and the company’s risk register and has received regular updates on
progress of the internal audit plan that provides assurance against any significant control weaknesses
Meetings of the Board and Committees were held during 2016/17 as follows:
Board of Directors

Audit and Risk
Committee

26 April 2016
22 June 2016
28 July 2016
31 August 2016
13 October 2016
19 October 2016
14 December 2016

Remuneration
Committee

22 June 2016

19 October 2016
19 December 2016

26 January 2017
21 February 2017

14 December 2016

The following table shows the attendance at meetings in 2016/17:

Nick Whitfield*
Robert
Henderson*
Ian Dodds*
Cathy Kerr #
Leigh
Whitehouse #
David Groves
David Archibald
Jane Spencer
Gill Holmes

Attendance at Board
of Directors

Attendance at Audit
and Risk Committee

Attendance at
Remuneration
Committee **

Potential
9
9

Actual
7
7

Potential
N/A
N/A

Actual
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

5
9
9

5
8
6

N/A
3
3

N/A
0
0

N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A

9
9
9
9

9
7
9
7

3
3
3
3

3
3
3
1

1
1
1
1

1
1
1
1

* Executive Directors are not member of the Audit and Risk Committee and attend by invitation to
advise the Committee
# Nominated substitutes can attend for Council Appointed Directors and the attendance
** Membership of the Remuneration Committee is restricted to Non-Executive Independent Directors
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Remuneration of Directors
There are different arrangements for setting the remuneration of Board Directors:
a) Seconded Directors are employees of the Councils and their terms and conditions are
determined by the Councils.
b) Executive Directors employed by AfC have their terms and conditions determined by the
Company.
c) Council Appointed Non-Executive Directors these are employed by the two Councils and are
executive directors for their respective Councils. Their terms of employments are determined
by the employing Council and relates to their service to the Council. Their service on the Board
of Achieving for Children is not remunerated and no costs are charged to the company for
their services.
d) Non-Executive Independent Directors are part time directors of Achieving for Children and
their remuneration is based on a daily rate that includes attendance at Board and Committee
meetings and associated work. Their appointment and terms are determined by the Councils.
Thus, when the Remuneration Committee met in December 2016 the Company was only responsible
for determining the terms and conditions of the Executive Directors employed by the Company – Nick
Whitfield and Ian Dodds.
Non-Executive Independent Directors are appointed, and their remuneration agreed, by the Councils
acting as the owners of the Company in a general meeting. Their remuneration is based on a daily
rate of £495 and covers all meetings and preparation work. No other remuneration, taxable benefits
of pension benefits were paid to these Directors. Gill Holmes did not claim any allowance in 2015/16
as her employment contract at that time did not allow remuneration for her Non-Executive
Independent Director duties.
The remuneration for Directors of the Company in 2016/17 is set out below:
National
Salary Insurance
£
£
Executive Directors
Nick Whitfield:
Seconded Director
Employed by the Company
2016/17
2015/16
Ian Dodds - from 1 October
2016

Pension
Other
Benefits Expenses
£
£

TOTAL
£

85,047
49,916
134,963
148,263

11,134
6,422
17,556
18,288

14,765
7,737
22,502
25,798

861
138
999
1,777

111,807
64,213
176,020
194,126

50,786

6,449

7,872

143

65,250

Robert Henderson

2016/17
2015/16

113,373
110,330

14,457
12,281

19,713
19,197

18
0

147,561
141,808

Total Executive Directors

2016/17

298,783

38,415

50,034

1,159

388,830
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2015/16

Non-Executive Independent
Directors
David Groves

National
Salary Insurance
£
£
258,593
30,569

Pension
Other
Benefits Expenses
£
£
44,995
1,777

TOTAL
£
335,934

2016/17
2015/16

14,108
12,375

1,574
1,428

15,681
13,803

David Archibald
(from 18 January 2016)

2016/17
2015/16

9,900
0

993
0

10,893
0

Gill Holmes

2016/17
2015/16

5,445
0

565
0

6,010

Jane Spencer

2016/17
2015/16

6,039
8,415

526
788

6,565
9,203

2015/16

4,702

276

4,978

2016/17
2015/16

35,492
25,492

3,658
2,492

39,149
27,984

Dame Moira Gibb (to 31
October 2015)
Total Non-Executive
Independent Directors

Remuneration of Council Officers appointed as Non-Executive directors of Achieving for Children
Cathy Kerr is Director of Adults and Community Services for Richmond Council and Leigh Whitehouse
is Director of Finance for Kingston Council. Both serve as Non-Executive Directors for Achieving for
Children as part of their duties to their Councils, and they receive no additional remuneration in
respect of these appointments. They are not remunerated by Achieving for Children nor does the
Company bear any charge for their services as directors. Their remuneration is published in the
accounts of their respective Councils and is available on their websites:
https://www.kingston.gov.uk/info/200285/financial_information/738/accounts
http://www.richmond.gov.uk/budgets_and_spending

Remuneration of Senior Management of the Company
The Board of Directors has delegated the responsibility for the day to day running of Achieving for
Children to the Chief Executive and Directors who make decisions on the Senior Leadership Team
(SLT). These delegations are detailed in a Scheme of Delegation. The organisation’s directors are
responsible for ensuring the company achieves the ambitions and strategy set by the Board of
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Directors, and delivers the best possible services for children and their families in line with our
contract with the commissioning Councils.
Nick Whitfield, Rob Henderson and Ian Dodds (from October 2016) are Board Directors and the other
senior leaders have the term ‘director’ in their job title but are not Directors of the Company.
Senior Leadership Team
Nick Whitfield
Chief Executive
Robert Henderson
Deputy Chief Executive
Ian Dodds
Deputy Chief Executive
Alison Twynam
Director of Social Care
Charis Penfold
Director of Education Services
Paul Bettles
Director of Finance and Resources (to October 2016)
Lucy Kourpas
Director of Finance and Resources (from October 2016)
Simon James
Associate Director of Special Educational Needs (SEN) and
Disabilities (to January 2017)
Deborah Glassbrook
Director of Improvement (from October 2016)
The remuneration of each director who was not on the Company Board of Directors in 2016/17 was:

Salary

National
Insurance

Pension
Benefits

Other
Expenses

TOTAL

Paul Bettles (up to October 2016)*

AfC

2016/17
2015/16

£
46,767
90,555

£
5,894
10,214

£
7,249
14,036

£
7
0

£
59,917
114,805

Lucy Kourpas (from October 2016)*

AfC

2016/17

46,767

5,894

7,249

0

59,910

Simon James (to January 2017)*

AfC

2016/17
2015/16

66,432
81,585

8,235
8,977

10,297
12,646

0
584

84,964
103,792

Deborah Glassbrook (from October 2016)*

AfC

2016/17

41,962

5,231

6,504

215

53,912

Charis Penfold

AfC

2016/17
2015/16

96,731
89,812

12,229
10,111

14,993
13,921

1,207
667

125,160
114,511

Ian Dodds (Prior to appointment as
Executive Director) (from October 2016)*

AfC

2016/17
2015/16

50,109
105,674

6,355
12,300

7,767
16,380

0
0

64,231
134,354

Alison Twynam

LBR

2016/17
2015/16

106,716
102,894

13,607
11,916

18,555
17,993

241
0

139,119
132,803

*part year remuneration
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Review of Governance and Internal Control
The Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for advising the Board on the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Company’s governance, risk management, internal control, treasury management and value for
money systems and frameworks. These arrangements were based on those that were in place in the
two Councils prior to AfC being formed and the Committee has considered these during the last year
and introduced new review processes that are more appropriate to the Company but also provide the
Councils with the assurances that they require.
The new arrangements require that each member of the Senior Leadership Team carries out a review
of the effectiveness of internal control for their respective areas of responsibility and this has been
reviewed by the whole team and separately by the Chief Executive. They have reported their findings
to the Audit and Risk Committee which agreed a Statement of Internal Control at its meeting in June
2017 and advised the Board that the Company had adequate and effective arrangements in place in
relation to Company’s governance, risk management, internal control, treasury management and
value for money systems and frameworks.

6.3 Directors’ Responsibilities
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report that includes the Strategic Report and
Directors’ Report, and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year.
Accordingly, the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. Under
company law, the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs and profit or loss of the Company for that period.
In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:
•
•
•
•

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
state whether IFRSs as adopted by the EU have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the Group and parent Company Financial Statements
respectively; and
prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the Company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
Furthermore, the Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and
financial information included on the Company’s website. Legislation in the UK governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.
The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report in accordance with applicable law and
regulations. The directors consider that the annual report and financial statements, when taken as a
whole, is fair, balanced and understandable.
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Each of the Directors, who are identified on page 21, is responsible for preparing the annual report
and financial statements. In particular, each of the Directors confirms that to the best of their
knowledge:
• The statement of accounts, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs, give a true
and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and loss of the Company;
• The Strategic Report, contained in pages 5 to 17 and the Directors’ Report, contained in pages
18 to 27, together set out a fair review of the development and performance of the business
and position of the Company and describe the principal risks that it faces;
• So far as each Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which Grant
Thornton UK LLP, as the Company’s auditors, are unaware; and
• They have taken all steps they ought to have taken as a Director in order to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that Grant Thornton UK LLP are
aware of that information.
Signed on behalf of the Board:

David Groves
Chair of the Board of Directors
3 July 2017
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Introduction to the Financial Accounts and Audit Fees
Introduction
These accounts have been compiled in line with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
and cover the period from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017. The accounts have been audited by
Grant Thornton UK LLP. For transparency purposes the following table details the fees payable to
Grant Thornton.
Description
Annual audit fee
Total Fees payable to the auditor for the audit of the
Company’s annual Accounts
Taxation compliance services (Corporation Tax)
Certification of Teachers Pension Return
Total fees payable to the auditor for other services

2016/17
£000
28

2015/16
£000
28

28

28

6
4

6
4

10

10

Grant Thornton UK LLP is constituted as a limited liability partnership in accordance with the
Limited Liability Partnership Act 2000.
The financial accounts and disclosures are set out in the Company’s Statement of Accounts that
follows the Auditor’s Report.
Auditor’s Report
The report by Achieving for Children’s independent auditor on the financial statements for the
period ending 31 March 2017 is set out on the following page.

ACHIEVING FOR CHILDREN CIC - ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17

Page 28

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Independent auditor's report to the members of Achieving for Children
Community Interest Company
We have audited the financial statements of Achieving for Children Community Interest Company
for the year ended 31 March 2017 which comprise the statement of financial position, the statement
of comprehensive income, the statement of cash flow, the statement of changes in equity and the
related notes. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union.
This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to
the company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's members as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor
As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.
Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us
to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.
Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditscopeukprivate.
Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:
•
•
•

give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 March 2017 and of its
loss for the year then ended;
have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union;
and
have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
•

the information given in the Strategic Report and Directors' Report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
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THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD
ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
This statement measures the Company’s performance for the period and shows the accounting profit or loss in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

NOTES
2016/17
£000
101,589
5,764
-32,715
-41
-75,922
-1,325

2015/16
£000
97,649
7,862
-33,864
-41
-74,812
-3,206

Revenue
Other income
Employee benefits
Depreciation
Other expenses
Operating Profit /(Loss

7
7
5
10
8

Finance income
Finance costs
Profit /(Loss) before tax

18
18

12
-735
-2,048

12
-907
-4,101

Tax expense
Profit /(Loss) from continuing operations

19

0
-2,048

0
-4,101

5

-10,628
0
-10,628

8,958
0
8,958

-12,676

4,857

-6,338.0
-6,338.0
-12,676.0

2,428.5
2,428.5
4,857.0

Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be re-classified subsequently to profit or loss
- Re-measurement of net defined benefit liability
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit of loss
Other comprehensive income for the period net of tax
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (EXPENSE) FOR THE YEAR
Loss for the year attributable to parent companies:
LB Richmond upon Thames (50%)
RB Kingston upon Thames (50%)
Total
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED
31 MARCH 2017
This statement shows the movement or change in value of net equity from the beginning of the reporting period
to the 31st March.
The Company’s net worth or equity is currently showing as a significant negative balance. The owning Councils
retain decision making power on a number of reserved matters and as a result of Community Interest Companies
being subject to a legislative ‘asset lock’, have determined that AfC cannot hold significant Non-Current Assets. In
addition, the Board and owning Councils have committed to offering the Local Government Pension Scheme to
ensure compliance with the offer of equivalent terms and conditions for TUPE staff and it is a key part of the
Company’s recruitment and retention strategy. The LGPS is a funded defined benefit scheme and as a result AfC
is reporting a significant pension deficit on the Statement of Financial Position. This deficit represents the
shortfall in money set aside to pay for pension rights earned to date. This money will not be paid out until the
current members retire and does not represent an immediate cashflow issue. The fund is subject to a triennial
valuation and employer contribution rates will be adjusted to ensure that the fund is adequately resourced to pay
out retirement benefits due, when they are due. The combination of these two factors means that AfC’s Equity is
likely to remain in a negative position for the foreseeable future but does not mean that the Company is not a
Going Concern. The reasons for a positive Going Concern assessment are detailed in Note 2 to these Accounts.

Notes
Balance at 31 March 2015
Profit/(Loss) for the year
Other Comprehensive Income
- Re-measurement of net defined benefit liability

Pensions
Reserve
£000
-5,301

SCI

5

Retained
Earnings
£000
-17,068

Total
Attributable
to Owners
£000
-22,369

-4,101

-4,101

8,958

8,958

Total comprehensive income for the year

8,958

-4,101

4,857

Balance at 31 March 2016

3,657

-21,169

-17,512

-2,048

-2,048

Profit / (Loss) for the year
Other Comprehensive Income
- Re-measurement of net defined benefit liability
Total comprehensive income for the year

5

-10,628

-10,628

-10,628

-2,048

-12,676

-6,971

-23,217

-30,188

Balance at 31 March 2017**

** The annual balance will be carried forward within the Company’s Statement of Financial Position
There were no non-controlling entities for the 2015/16 and 2016/17 periods
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Pensions Reserve – This reserve represents the cumulative amount that has been recognised via Other
Comprehensive Income in relation to re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability due to changes in
actuarial assumptions. Examples include changes in demographic assumptions, changes in financial assumptions,
changes in the asset ceiling and return on assets that are not included in net interest.
Retained Earnings – This represents the net cumulative carrying amount of the Profit / (Loss) from continuing
operations.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2017
The Statement of Financial Position or Balance Sheet shows the net worth of the Company as at the 31st March in
accordance with IFRS. It shows what the Company owes and owns and the equity within the Company that is
attributable to Achieving for Children’s (AfC) parent Councils.

Company Registration Number 08878185

Notes

31 March
2017
£000

31 March
2016
£000

ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible Assets
Payment in Advance
Non-Current Assets

10
10

16
0
34
50

27
29
0
56

Trade and Other Receivables
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Current Assets

13
14

26,324
1,850
28,174

24,122
1,412
25,534

TOTAL ASSETS

28,224

25,590

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

-30,188

-17,512

Liabilities:
Finance Lease Liabilities
Pension and other employee obligations
Non-Current Liabilities

11
5

0
28,219
28,219

0
15,516
15,516

Finance Lease Liabilities
Borrowings
Trade and other payables
Provisions
Current Liabilities

11
17
15
16

0
21,014
9,112
67
30,193

29
12,714
14,727
116
27,586

Total Liabilities

58,412

43,102

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

28,224

25,590

Signed:

David Groves, Chair of the Board
3 July 2017
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STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31
MARCH 2017
The Statement of Cashflows shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Company during the
reporting period and how cash movements relate to the profit and loss for the period.

Notes
Operating Activities
Loss before tax
Non cash flow adjustments
Contributions to defined benefit plans
Net changes in working capital
Net cash from operating activities

SCI
20
5
20

Investing Activities
Net cash used in investing activities
Financing Activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Net cash from / used in financing activities
Net movement in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

14

2016
£000

2015
£000

-2,048
5,418
-3,381
-7,851
-7,862

-4,101
7,398
-3,267
3,042
3,072

0

-11

19,000
-10,700
8,300

25,900
-28,500
-2,600

438
1,412
1,850

461
951
1,412

AfC borrows money from its parent Councils via a revolving credit facility for ongoing operations. The amount
still owed to the Councils under this arrangement is detailed in Note 17 to the accounts.
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NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1 GENERAL INFORMATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH IFRS
Achieving for Children (AfC) was registered as a Community Interest Company on 5th February 2014. The
Company is jointly owned by the LB Richmond upon Thames and RB Kingston upon Thames. Each owner
has a 50% ownership stake in the Company. The Company began trading on 1st April 2014. This statement
of accounts reports on the third year of trading and covers the period from 1st April 2016 to 31st March
2017.
AfC was established to provide children’s social care and education services to children, families and young
people across the boroughs of Richmond and Kingston as well as other areas. The main contract during the
accounting period to which this statement relates is with the LB Richmond and RB Kingston. Plans are
currently underway to admit the RB Windsor and Maidenhead as a third owner. This means that it is
anticipated that from the summer of 2017 (next financial year) the Company will be delivering services to
an additional borough area. This will lead to a significant increase in Company revenue and expenditure
(increase by up to 33%) when compared to 2016/17.
This Statement of Accounts has been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as required by the Companies Act 2006. The Accounts summarise the Company’s financial
performance (Statement of Comprehensive Income), equity (Statement of Equity), financial position
(Statement of Financial Position) and cash flow (Statement of Cashflows) for the period. The financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. Pension assets and liabilities are
measured in line with the requirements of IAS19, further details are included in Note 5.
In preparing this Statement the Company has considered the impact that exit from the European Union
(BREXIT) may have. No material financial impact is expected but the organisation may be affected by
resulting changes to the law, including those relating to education and children’s services, employment,
procurement regulations and statutory reporting. In addition, changes in the cost of goods and services
due to changes in the cost of import or changes to exchange rates could impact on the cost of running
services and require negotiations with Commissioners with regard to contract prices.

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
The Company has followed a detailed set of IFRS compliant accounting policies in the production of these
accounts. The full policies are contained in Note 28 to these Accounts. The Accounting policies are revised
annually to ensure they remain appropriate and relevant. The most significant policies to note are:
•

Recognition of Income and Expenditure
Activity is accounted for in the period that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made
or received. In particular:
Income - Revenue from the sale of goods and services is recognised when the Company transfers
the significant risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic
benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Company. Revenue
from the provision of services is recognised when it is probable that economic benefits or service
potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Company.
Expenditure - Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed. Expenses in relation
to services received (including services provided by employees) are recorded as expenditure when
the services are received rather than when payments are made.
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The de-minimis limit for adjusting the accounts for income and expenditure not physically received
or paid (accruals) but relating to the reporting year is £5,000.
•

Post-Employment Benefits
The following pension schemes are available to employees of AfC:
-

Teachers’ Pension Scheme is available to teachers
National Health Service Pension Scheme is available to staff carrying out health functions
Local Government Pensions Scheme (LB Richmond and RB Kingston schemes) are available to
all staff - LGPS

These are all Defined Benefit Schemes, but the first two are accounted for as Defined Contribution
Schemes due to their nature. For Defined Contributions Schemes, the payments are accounted for
on an accruals basis with no adjustment under IAS 19.
The LGPS is accounted for as required by IAS 19 to show the cost of benefits earned in the period of
account against the relevant service. This uses figures provided by the Actuary in assessing the
current value of benefits earned during the period, the impact of decisions or changes made during
the period, interest and re-measurement costs. Further details are provided in Note 5 to the
Accounts.
The following Critical Judgements and assumptions have been made in applying Accounting Policies:
• Agency relationship – It has been assessed that the passporting of Dedicated Schools Grant on
behalf of the parent Councils to various education establishments is an agency relationship and has
therefore been excluded from AfC’s Accounts. Further details are available in Note 6.
• Going Concern – Achieving for Children CIC has been assessed by the Directors as a Going Concern.
Despite the significant accounting losses reported in these Accounts the Board and Senior
Leadership Team have made significant progress in identifying how these financial challenges will
be met and continues to develop these plans. The Board’s Medium Term Financial Plan outlines
these financial plans in more detail and addresses what actions are being taken to reduce the
Company’s cost base to accommodate proposed reductions in the two owners’ contract prices over
the next three years. As with the parent Councils, the Company will revise pension contributions in
line with the most up to date actuarial assessment and guidance. An assessment was carried out
as at 31st March 2016 and the increased employer contribution rate (16% from 15.5%) will apply
from 1st April 2017. The increased cost will be fully funded under the contract with the Councils.
The Company is wholly owned by two Councils who are both determined to be Going Concerns.
The Company is able to borrow from the Councils under a Revolving Credit Facility to ensure short
term cash flow and the Councils are contractually committed to procuring children’s services from
AfC for seven years from April 2014.
• Deferred Tax Asset – The Company has assessed that the deferred tax asset should be recognised
as a contingent asset rather than as an asset within the Statement of Financial Position. It is not
probable that the Company will make significant taxable profits in the short to medium term. If the
Company does make taxable profits in the coming years it will be able to reduce its initial tax
liability by offsetting taxable losses incurred.
The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the
Company about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account
historic experience, current trends and other relevant factors. The items in the accounts that have a more
significant associated estimation risk are:
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•

Recognition of income and expenditure – The identification and calculation of accrued income and
expenditure is done using the best information available. Where actual amounts have not yet been
agreed, adjustments for anticipated income and expenditure have been based on estimations.

•

Actuarial valuation of pension liabilities and assets – Pension assets and liabilities and associated
costs have been presented based upon an actuarial estimate that has been calculated in line with
methodologies prescribed in IAS19. The actuary makes assumptions based on indicators of future
trends. Full details and a sensitivity analysis is provided in note 5 to the accounts.

NOTE 3 MATERIAL AND EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS OF INCOME AND EXPENSE
Exceptional Items:
The Company has not assessed any items as exceptional during 2016/17 or 2015/16.
Material Items:
A material item is an item of expenditure or income that is unusual in scale and non-recurring. The
following material items are reported as part of the accounts:
Change Controls – The contract prices with both Councils changed throughout the reporting year.
Under the contracts, AfC can bid for more contract income if it is needed to ensure that service
standards are maintained or if there are significant fluctuations in demand for services (e.g. more
children requiring care). The Company was granted an additional £2.6m (£2.2m in 2015/16) by the
RB Kingston and £2.3m (£3.1m in 2015/16) by the LB Richmond. This additional income is included
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income under Revenue.
Government Grant – The Company received a one off Government Grant totalling £1.1m in
2015/16. This grant was given to enable the Company to pilot an innovative approach to care
called ‘Better by Design’. The programme trains specialist innovation mentors (or foster carers)
and works with young people to enable them to move from residential care into specialist foster
placements. The income and associated expenditure was recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income in 2015/16 (comparative year) and there are no associated transactions
during 2016/17.

NOTE 4 ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
There were no acquisitions or disposals in 2016/17.
During 2015/16 the SEN Transport function was transferred into the Company, from LB Richmond (1st
August 2015) and several management posts were transferred into the Company (from LB Richmond and
RB Kingston) on 1st January 2016, following changes in legislation that enabled Councils to transfer various
statutory functions, associated with the delivery of children’s social care, to other organisations. The staff
associated with both these functions, were transferred in under TUPE rules.
The Councils retained all significant pre transfer assets and liabilities with the exception of those detailed in
the table below. The assets and liabilities were transferred for a peppercorn consideration.
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2016/17
Asset
£000

2016/17
Liability
£000

2016/17
Net
£000

2015/16
Asset
£000

2015/16
Liability
£000

2015/16
Net
£000

-

-

-

2,327

-3,107

-780

-

-

-

2,327

-3,107

-780

-

-

-

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

No operations have been discontinued during the period.

-

-

2,327

-3,107

-780

Pensions Costs:
Associated with staff transferring during 2015/16
Employee Leave:
Associated with staff transferring during the period

NOTE 5 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Expenses recognised within Statement of Comprehensive Income as employee benefits are analysed below:

Salaries
Employee absence liability
National Insurance
Pension Fund Contributions - LGPS
Pension Fund liability for staff transferred under TUPE*
Pension Fund Contributions - Other schemes
Other (redundancy, compensation etc.)

Trading
2016/17
£000

Trading
2015/16
£000

-25,072
16
-2,493
-4,871
0
-129
-166

-25,072
42
-1,916
-5,752
-780
-189
-197

-32,715

-33,864

*The Company has taken on the pension fund liability associated with the transfer in of Local Government
staff under TUPE regulations. This transaction is non-recurring.
Salaries
During the 2016/17 year the Company employed an average of 688 FTE staff (711 in 2015/16). The
Company has undergone significant staff restructuring that has reduced the staff establishment during
2016/17. The level of salary spend has remained at a similar level due to the staff pay award, incremental
drift and other factors. Details of staffing across services in 2016/17 are:
Service
Early Help
Education Services
Finance and Resources
SEN and Children with Disabilities
Social Care
Standards and Improvement
Strategic Management
Total

FTE's
240
100
22
127
131
62
6
688
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Defined Benefit Pension Plans (LGPS)
As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Company makes contributions
towards the cost of post-employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be payable until
employees retire, AfC has a commitment to make the payments (for those benefits) and to disclose them at
the time that employees earn their future entitlement.
Staff can be members of either the LB Richmond or RB Kingston upon Thames funds. Staff that transferred
into the Company in the first period remain on their original plan and new employees are admitted to the
plans on an alternate basis to ensure that membership numbers between the two funds remain relatively
equal.
The Company participates in the following post-employment arrangements:
• The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by the LB Richmond and the Local
Government Pension Scheme, administered by the RB Kingston – this is a funded defined benefit
salary scheme, meaning that the Company and employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated
at a level intended to balance the pensions liabilities with investment assets. The Company is
responsible for any deficit on its share of the Fund.
• Arrangements for the award of discretionary post-retirement benefits upon early retirement – this
is an unfunded defined benefit arrangement, under which liabilities are recognised when awards
are made. However, there are no investment assets built up to meet these pension liabilities, and
cash has to be generated to meet actual pension payments as they eventually fall due.
The principal risks to the Company are the longevity assumptions, statutory changes to the scheme,
structural changes to the scheme (i.e. large-scale withdrawals from the scheme), changes to inflation, bond
yields and the performance of the equity investments held by the scheme. These risks are managed by the
Fund over the long term, via the independent actuarial valuation process setting appropriate contribution
rates.
Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits
The Company recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when
they are earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions.
The following table shows the impact of LGPS post-employment benefits on Statement of Comprehensive
Income:
2016/17
2015/16
£000
£000
-4,922
-5,748
Current service costs
-15
-4
Past service costs
65
0
Effect of settlements
0
-780
Pension Fund liability for staff transferred under TUPE during the period
-4,872
-6,532
Total recognised in operating profit / (loss)
Finance costs
Finance income

-2,394
1,810

-2,181
1,452

Total post-employment benefit charged to the profit / (loss) from continuing
operations

-5,456

-7,261

1,666
-16,125
-6,799

0
9,434
2

Re-measurement of the Net defined Benefit Liability :
Change in demographic assumptions
Change in financial assumptions
Other experience
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2016/17
£000

2015/16
£000

10,630

-478

-10,628
-16,084

8,958
1,697

Return on plan assets (excluding amounts already included in the net interest expense)
Total recognised in Other Income
Total recognised in Total Comprehensive Income for the period

Pensions Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Statement of Financial Position
The amount included in the Statement of Financial Position arising from the Company’s obligation in
respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows:
2016/17
£000
-92,993
64,774
-28,219

Present Value of the Defined Benefit Obligation
Fair Value of Plan Assets
Net Liability arising from Defined Benefit Obligations

2015/16
£000
-64,012
48,496
-15,516

There were no liabilities in relation to unfunded liabilities.
Reconciliation of Present Value of the Scheme Assets and Liabilities

Assets
£000

2016/17
Liabilities
£000

Total
£000

Assets
£000

2015/16
Liabilities
£000

Total
£000

48,496

-64,012

-15,516

40,468

-60,948

-20,480

-

-

-

2,327

-3,107

-780

Current Service Cost
Past Service Cost
Effect of settlements
Interest (Cost) / Income

0
0
-224
1,810

-4,922
-15
289
-2,394

-4,922
-15
65
-584

0
0
0
1,452

-5,748
-4
0
-2,181

-5,748
-4
0
-729

Contributions from the employer
Contributions from employees
Gains / (Losses) on Curtailment
Benefits paid

3,381
1,518
0
-837

0
-1,518
0
837

3,381
0
0
0

3,267
1,460
0
0

0
-1,460
0
0

3,267
0
0
0

0

1,666

1,666

0

0

0

0

-16,125

-16,125

0

9,434

9,434

Opening Present Value of Scheme
Liabilities
Transfer in of assets and liabilities 2015/16

Re-measurement Gains / (Losses) :
- Actuarial Gains / (Losses) arising from
change in demographic assumptions
- Actuarial Gains / (Losses) arising from
changes in financial assumptions
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Assets
£000

2016/17
Liabilities
£000

Total
£000

Assets
£000

2015/16
Liabilities
£000

Total
£000

0

-6,799

-6,799

0

2

2

- Return on assets (excluding the amount
included in the net interest expense)

10,630

0

10,630

-478

0

-478

Closing Fair Value of Scheme Assets
and Liabilities at 31 March

64,774

-92,993

-28,219

48,496

-64,012

-15,516

- Other experience

The Company estimates that it will pay £4.3m in employer contributions in 2017/18. The contribution will
increase from 15.5% to 16% for 2017/18 to 2019/20 in line with the recent triennial valuation.
Local Government Pension Scheme assets comprised:
31-Mar-17
£000
%
£000
%
LB RICHMOND
RB KINGSTON

31-Mar-16
£000
%
£000
%
LB RICHMOND RB KINGSTON

Equity Securities
- Consumer
- Manufacturing
- Energy and Utilities
- Financial Institutions
- Health Care
- Information Technology
- Other

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%

1,578
1,045
719
1,305
1,106
1,698
1,101

4%
3%
2%
4%
3%
4%
3%

0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%

1,086
748
501
1,154
894
1,119
755

4%
3%
2%
5%
3%
4%
3%

Bonds
- Corporate Bonds (investment grade)
- UK Government

0
0

0%
0%

0
0

0%
0%

2,342
1,413

10%
6%

0
0

0%
0%

2,659

9%

1,706

5%

2,169

10%

1,209

5%

18,022
4,727
3,841

61%
16%
13%

12,220
4,792
7,729

35%
14%
22%

13,454
0
3,087

59%
0%
14%

8,865
3,473
5,744

35%
13%
22%

295

1%

230

1%

242

1%

241

1%

29,544

100%

Property (UK)
Investment Funds and Trusts
- Equities
- Bonds
- Other
Cash and Cash Equivalents

35,229 100%

22,707 100%

25,789 100%

Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities
Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an estimate of
the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary
levels, etc.
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Both the Local Government Pension Scheme and discretionary benefits liabilities have been estimated by
Hymans Robertson LLP and Barnett Waddingham LLP, independent firms of actuaries. Estimates for
Statements of the Fund are being based on the latest full valuation of the schemes available at the time of
producing the calculations.
The significant assumptions used by the actuary have been:
2016/17
2015/16
LB
RB
LB
RB
RICHMOND KINGSTON RICHMOND KINGSTON
Long term expected rate of return on assets in the
scheme
Mortality assumptions
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:
Men
Women
Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:
Men
Women

Take up option to convert annual position into
retirement lump sum

2.7%

2.6%

3.6%

3.6%

24.3 years
25.9 years

22.5 years
24.8 years

22.2 years
24.4 years

22.5 years
24.7 years

26.5 years
28.2 years

24.2 years
26.7 years

24.3 years
26.9 years

24.6 years
27.0 years

2016/17

2016/17

2015/16

2015/16

LB
RB
LB
RICHMOND KINGSTON RICHMOND

RB
KINGSTON

- Pre April 2008 Service

50%

50%

25%

50%

- Post April 2008 Service

50%

75%

63%

75%

Financial Assumptions
Rate of inflation
Rate of increase in pensions
Rate of increase in salaries
Discount Rate - Richmond
Discount Rate - Kingston

31-Mar-17

31-Mar-16

% pa

% pa

2.40%
2.40%
2.80%
2.70%
2.60%

2.20%
2.20%
4.20%
3.60%
3.60%

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in the
table above. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes
of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for each change that only the
assumption analysed changes, while all the other assumptions remain constant. The assumptions in
longevity, for example, assume that life expectancy increases or decreases for men and women. In
practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be interrelated. The
estimations in the sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting policies for the scheme, i.e. on an
actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method.
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31-Mar-17
Change in Assumptions at 31 March

Approximate
monetary amount
£000
11,958

1 year increase in member life expectancy
0.5% increase in the salary increase rate
0.5% increase in the pension increase rate

31-Mar-16

Approximate Approximate Approximate
% increase
monetary
% increase
amount to employer
to employer
13%

£000
8,292

13%

£2,790m - £4,650m

3% - 5%

1,921

3%

2,643
9,099

3%
10%

3,120
4,985

5%
8%

0.5% decrease in Real Discount Rate

Defined benefit pension schemes accounted for as defined contribution schemes
The Company participates in two defined benefit pension schemes which are accounted for as defined
contribution schemes:
• Teacher’s Pension Scheme (TPS)
Staff employed by the Company on teachers terms and conditions are members of the Teachers’ Pension
Scheme, administered by Capita Teachers’ Pensions on behalf of the Department for Education (DfE). The
Scheme provides teachers with specified benefits upon their retirement, and the Company contributes
towards the costs by making contributions based on a percentage of members’ pensionable salaries. The
scheme is a multi-employer defined benefit scheme. The scheme is unfunded and the Department for
Education uses a notional fund as the basis for calculating the employers’ contribution rate paid by local
authorities. Valuations of the notional fund are undertaken every four years. The Company is not able to
identify its share of the underlying financial position and performance of the scheme with sufficient
reliability for accounting purposes and it is therefore accounted for on the same basis as a defined
contribution scheme. AfC is responsible for the costs of any additional benefits awarded upon early
retirement outside of the terms of the teachers’ scheme. There were no such costs in 2016/17 and
2015/16. The Company is not liable to the scheme for any other entities obligations under the plan.
• National Health Service (NHS) Pension Scheme
The Company employs some staff who undertake medical procedures and therefore qualify for
membership to the NHS Pension Scheme. The NHS pension scheme is an unfunded, multi-employer,
defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers. In the NHS, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a
defined contribution scheme: “NHS bodies shall account for the NHS Superannuation Scheme as a defined
contribution plan” (NHS Manual full reference). The Company is not able to identify its share of the
underlying financial position and performance of the scheme with sufficient reliability for accounting
purposes. For the purposes of these Accounts, it is therefore accounted for on the same basis as a defined
contribution scheme. The Company is not liable to the scheme for any other entities obligations under the
plan.

Total Contributions
Employer's Contribution Rate
Anticipated Employer's Contributions next year
*rates applicable from 1st September each year

Teachers’
Pension
Scheme
2016/17
£000
-107

NHS
Pension
Scheme
2016/17
£000
-22

Teachers’
Pension
Scheme

NHS
Pension
Scheme

2015/16
£000
-155

2015/16
£000
-34

16.5%
16.5%

14.3%
14.4%

16.4%
16.5%

14.3%
14.3%
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NOTE 6 AGENCY TRANSACTIONS
During the period, AfC acted as agent for the LB Richmond upon Thames and RB of Kingston upon Thames
with regard to the payment of Dedicated School Grant to schools, nurseries and other educational
organisations. AfC calculates the allocations in line with prescribed methodologies and arranges payment
of the money to the relevant organisations. The Company is fully reimbursed by the Councils for all
payments made. These agency transactions have been excluded from the Accounts and will instead be
reported within the Council’s Accounts. The net impact of the difference in cash received and amounts
paid out on behalf of the Councils is recognised as a net debtor on the Statement of Financial Position.
The key figures and impact on the primary statements are summarised below:
Income Expenditure
Total
2016/17
2016/17 2016/17
£000
£000
£000
Net impact on Statement of
Comprehensive Income:
Contract Income:
- LB Richmond upon Thames
- RB Kingston upon Thames
Transactions with schools /
nurseries:
- LB Richmond upon Thames
- RB Kingston upon Thames

Impact on Profit and Loss Account

-5,416
-8,582

-

-5,416
-8,582

-2,523
-12,714

-

-2,523
-12,714

-13,998

0

-13,998

-15,237

0

-15,237

-394
-380

5,810
8,962

5,416
8,582

-727
-496

3,250
13,210

2,523
12,714

-774

14,772

13,998

-1,223

16,460

15,237

-14,772

14,772

0

-16,460

16,460

0

Debtors

Creditors

Total

Debtors

Creditors

Total

-455
-899

-

-455
-899

-915
-1,513

-

-915
-1,513

-1,354

0

-1,354

-2,428

0

-2,428

-80
-145

183
10

103
-135

-20
-119

455
98

435
-21

-225

193

-32

-139

553

414

-1,579
796
590
1,386

193
-

-1,386
796
590
1,386

-2,567
479
1,535
2,014

553
-

-2,014
479
1,535
2,014

-193

193

0

-553

553

0

Net impact on Statement of
Financial Position:
Contract Income:
- LB Richmond upon Thames
- RB Kingston upon Thames
Transactions with schools /
nurseries:
- LB Richmond upon Thames
- RB Kingston upon Thames

Total
- LB Richmond upon Thames
- RB Kingston upon Thames
Net Debtor
Impact on Statement of Financial
Position

Income Expenditure
Total
2015/16
2015/16 2015/16
£000
£000
£000
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NOTE 7 REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME
The Company holds a contract with two Councils for the provision of education and children’s services that
make up 95% (94% in 2015/16) of the revenue reported in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The
contract is for a seven year period from 1st April 2014 with an option to extend by a further five years. The
contract income below is presented net of agency transactions (further details included in note 6).
A further breakdown of income is as follows:

Contract income LB Richmond Upon Thames
Contract income RB of Kingston Upon Thames
Fees & charges for services
Lettings
Client contributions
Income from local authorities
Revenue reported within operating loss

2016/17
£000
52,961
43,147
5,156
99
72
154
101,589

2015/16
£000
51,819
40,175
5,054
117
51
433
97,649

Government Grants
Grants and contributions*
Donations
Other
Other income reported within operating loss

259
5,504
1
0
5,764

1,393
6,288
79
102
7,862

107,353

105,511

Total income reported in operating loss

* grants and contributions from third parties other than Central Government

NOTE 8 OTHER EXPENSES
The following table provides a breakdown of other expenses reported in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income:

Indirect employee costs
Premises
Transport
Supplies and services
Third party (contract) payments and transfer payments
Support services
Other expenses
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2016/17
£000
-5,034
-4,309
-6,084
-5,582
-48,848
-6,065

2015/16
£000
-5,924
-4,203
-6,624
-6,403
-46,749
-4,909

-75,922

-74,812
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NOTE 9 RECONCILIATION TO MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTS
Management reports on nine key segments or divisions throughout the period. Each division is managed by a member of the Senior Leadership Team and there are regular
finance updates to the Board and parent Councils during the period. The following tables show the outturn position that was reported to management.
Kingston
SEN and
Finance Strategic
Social
Richmond Children with
SEN
Education Standards and
and
Manage
Grand
Management Outturn
Care
Social
Care
Disabilities
Early
Help
Transport
Services
Improvement
Resources
ment*
Total
2016/17
£000
£000
£000
£000
£000
£000
£000
£000
£000
£000
Income
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
58,378
0
58,378
LB Richmond Contract
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
51,728
0
51,728
RB Kingston Contract
252
261
2,016
1,077
42
2,221
1,461
172
0
7,502
Customer and Client Receipts
Other Grants and
0
22
3,942
100
0
3
76
115
0
4,258
Contributions
0
0
0
259
0
0
0
0
0
259
Government Grants
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
12
0
12
Interest Receivable
252
283
5,958
1,436
42
2,224
1,537
110,405
0 122,137
Expenditure
3,855
3,970
7,236
10,139
997
4,963
3,081
1,320
688
36,249
Employees
16
1
3
101
0
3
191
3,994
0
4,309
Premises
104
132
136
116
5,482
66
33
8
5
6,082
Transport
355
222
755
910
0
1,524
900
830
31
5,527
Supplies and Services
7,046
8,840
34,175
1,053
57
72
2
268
3
51,516
Third Party Payments**
225
532
7,918
393
0
215
34
2,794
0
12,111
Transfer Payments
655
742
132
34
0
51
3
4,446
0
6,063
Support Services
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
138
0
138
Interest Paid
12,256
14,439
50,355
12,746
6,536
6,894
4,244
13,798
727 121,995
-12,004
-14,156
-44,397
-11,310
-6,494
-4,670
-2,707
96,607
-727
142
Outturn
11,996
14,156
44,178
11,378
6,494
4,664
2,642
-96,124
616
0
Re-Allocate contract price
-8
0
-219
68
0
-6
-65
483
-111
142
Underspend/ (overspend)
* Reported as part of Finance and Resources in 2015/16
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Management Outturn 2015/16
Income
LB Richmond Contract
RB Kingston Contract
Customer and Client Receipts
Other Grants and Contributions
Government Grants
Interest Receivable
Expenditure
Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments**
Transfer Payments
Support Services
Interest Paid
Outturn
Re-Allocate contract price
Underspend/ (overspend)

Kingston
Social
Care
£000

Richmond
Social Care
£000

SEN and
Children with
Disabilities
£000

Early Help
£000

SEN
Transport
£000

Education
Services
£000

Standards and
Improvement
£000

Finance
and
Resources
£000

Grand
Total
£000

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

54,342
52,890

54,342
52,890

449
0

492
0

2,184
3,510

1,299
163

36
0

3,081
1

784
11

1,267
0

9,592
3,685

553
0

553
0

0
0

287
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
12

1,393
12

1,002

1,045

5,694

1,749

36

3,082

795

108,511

121,914

3,749
90
103
495
5,838

4,108
1
164
312
7,084

7,391
3
144
904
31,909

10,915
160
122
1,284
1,295

666
0
5,982
5
84

4,849
5
58
1,644
467

2,932
13
34
799
0

1,869
3,932
15
969
1,667

36,479
4,204
6,622
6,412
48,344

433
474

1,659
600

5,508
132

485
28

0
0

141
17

36
1

6,545
3,654

14,807
4,906

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

156

156

11,182
-10,180
10,005

13,928
-12,883
12,794

45,991
-40,297
40,320

14,289
-12,540
12,432

6,737
-6,701
6,701

7,181
-4,099
4,278

3,815
-3,020
2,888

18,807
89,704
-89,418

121,930
-16
0

-175

-89

23

-108

0

179

-132

286

-16

**Contract payments to third parties e.g. payments for independent child placements, payments for SEN placements, general contract payments etc.
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The basis on which the Company reports during the period is different to the IFRS compliant reporting required
for this Statement of Accounts. The following table provides a reconciliation between the outturn reported to
management and the Statement of Comprehensive Income:

£000

£000
142

Outturn after set up costs
Interest Receivable
Interest Payable
Recognition of annual leave owing to
employees
Pension Adjustments:
Recognition of TUPE liability transfer
Employer contributions
Recognition of non-current assets
Recognition of lease principal
Recognition of lease interest
Recognition of provisions
Depreciation

-12
138
15

42

0
-1,489
0
29
13
-120
-41

-780
-2,484
11
20
-124
-41

Total comprehensive income /
(expenditure) for the year

-1,467
-1,325

12
-138

£000
-16

-723

-584

-3,228

-729

-2,048

-10,628

-3,212

12
-156

-13

Profit / (Loss) from continuing
operations
Pension Adjustments:
Remeasurements

£000

-12
156

Operating profit
Interest Receivable
Interest Payable
Pension Adjustments:
Net Interest Payable

£000

Cumulative total
including management
accounts

Cumulative total
including management
accounts

£000

Reallocated in SOCI
Amounts not reported
to management for
decision making (IFRS
adjustments)

Amounts not reported
to management for
decision making (IFRS
adjustments)

2015/16

Reallocated in SOCI

2016/17

-10,628
-12,676

-873

-4,101

8,958

8,958
4,857

The Company pays Dedicated Schools Grant to educational establishments on behalf of LB Richmond and RB
Kingston. These transactions are treated as an agency relationship in the financial accounts as the decision
making power remains with the Councils. The net impact of removing these transactions from the Statement of
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Comprehensive Income is nil as both income and expenditure are removed. Further details are included in note
6.

NOTE 10 NON CURRENT ASSETS
Details of movement in non-current assets are included in the table below:
2016/17

Gross carrying amount:
Opening balance
Additions
Disposals
Balance 31 March
Depreciation, Amortisation and
impairment:
Opening balance
Disposals
Depreciation / Amortisation
Balance 31 March
Carrying amount 31 March
Useful Life

2015/16
Tangible
Intangible
ICT
Total
Software Equipme
nt
£000
£000
£000

Intangible
Software

Tangible
ICT
Equipment

£000

£000

87
0
0
87

48
0
0
48

135
0
0
135

87
0
0
87

37
11
0
48

124
11
0
135

-58
0
-29
-87
0

-21
0
-12
-33
15

-79
0
-41
-120
15

-29
0
-29
-58
29

-9
0
-12
-21
27

-38
0
-41
-79
56

3 years

4 years

3 years

4 years

Payment in advance

Total
£000

34

The Company has not purchased any tangible non-current assets during 2016/17 and purchased computer
tablets during 2015/16.
The Company paid a one off charge in 2016/17 for the use of accounting software over a 25 year period from
January 2017. Ownership of the software has not transferred to AfC and this transaction has been treated as a
Payment in Advance.
The following table summarises the amounts included in the table above that relate to leased assets:

Intangible software asset
less cumulative depreciation

2016/17
£000
87
-87
0

2015/16
£000
64
-42
22
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NOTE 11 LEASES
Finance leases as lessee
There have been no arrangements assessed as finance leases in the 2016/17 financial year.
The Company aquired an Integrated Children’s System via a finance lease from the RB Kingston during 2014/15.
This system was valued at £64k and included in the Company’s Statement of Financial Position with an
estimated life of three years. The system asset along with an equivalent liability has been written down over
the past three years (from 2014/15 to 2016/17) and was fully written down by 31st March 2017. The difference
between the future minimum lease payment and the liability is the interest cost of £13k (£22k in 2015/16)
which has been recognised under finance costs in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. No formal lease
agreement exists but the accounting treatment aims to present the substance of the arrangement.

Non-Current Assets:
Intangible Asset
less depreciation

Liabilities:
Current Finance Lease Liability
Non-Current Finance Lease
Liability

Future Lease Payments:
Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year
Later than 5 years
Total

31 March
2017
£000

31 March
2016
£000

22
-22
0

43
-21
22

0

29

0

0

0

29

Interest
£000
0
0
0
0

Principal
£000
0
0
0
0

Total
£000
0
0
0
0

Interest Principal
£000
£000
13
29
0
0
0
0
13
29

Total
£000
42
0
0
42

Operating leases as lessee
The Company leases offices and operational buildings from LB Richmond and RB Kingston that can be
terminated on 12 months notice. It also leases vehicles from LB Richmond and RB Kingston that (at 31 March
2017) are all over twelve years old with no carrying value. These are leased at a peppercorn as they have no
definite future life.
AfC entered into three new agreements during 2015/16 to enable access to software systems or modules in
relation to School Admissions, Early Help and SEN. The ‘off the shelf’ packages have been customised to meet
AfCs requirements. The Admissions package is being renewed for a minimum periods of three years from July
2017 and the other two are for a minimum notice period of 3 months to expire on any anniversary of the
commencement date which would be mid-September resulting in a minimum lease period of 5.5 months from 1
April in any financial year. The Company has a short term lease agreement in place for the use of multi
functional devices (MFD) for printing and scanning. This agreement was for 15 months from September 2016.
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The company leases vehicles to provide transport for children to travel to school. Two lease contracts were
entered into in August 2015 when AfC took over the operation of the service from Richmond Council for a
minimum period of twelve months and one month’s notice thereafter. These vehicles are on one month’s notice
as at 31 March 2017. In September 2016 AfC entered into a lease with Skanska for the provision of twelve
vehicles for a fixed period of 30 months. The minimum rental period as at 31 March 2017 is 23 months.
The future minimum lease payments are as follows:
31 March
2017
£000

31 March
2016
£000

Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year
Later than 5 years

2,414
178
0

2,086
2,342
0

Total

2,592

4,428

Future Lease Payments:

Finance and operating leases as lessor
The Company has no leases as lessor.

NOTE 12 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Categories of financial assets and liabilities
The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities are as follows:

Financial assets / Loans and Receivables
Trade and other receivables categorised as Financial Instruments
Trade and other receivables not categorised as Financial Instruments
Cash and cash equivalents categorised as a Financial Instrument

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Current borrowings
Finance lease liabilities
Trade and other payables categorised as Financial Instruments
Trade and other payables not categorised as Financial Instruments
Provisions not categorised as a Financial Instrument
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31 March
2017
£000

31 March
2016
£000

24,406
1,952
1,850

21,466
2,656
1,412

28,208

25,534

31 March
2017
£000

31 March
2016
£000

21,014
0
5,070
4,042
67
30,193

12,714
29
11,768
2,959
116
27,586
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A description of the Company’s financial instrument risk, including risk management objectives and policies is
given in Note 23.

NOTE 13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Trade and other receivables are made up as follows:

Trade receivables, gross
Impairment of Receivables
Trade receivables
Employee leave
Prepayments
Total current trade and other receivables
Non-current payment in advance (prepayments)
Total trade and other receivables

31 March
2017
£000
24,406
-137
24,269
123
1,932
26,324

31 March
2016
£000
21,466
-40
21,426
114
2,582
24,122

34

0

26,358

24,122

The net carrying value of trade receivables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value. All of the
Company's trade and other receivables have been reviewed for indicators of impairment.
The Company has made allowances against specific balances for impairment of receivables. The movement in
allowance for credit losses and write offs are presented below:

Balance 1 April
Amounts written off (uncollectable)
Impairment of Receivables
Balance 31 March

31 March
2017
£000
-40
15
-112
-137

31 March
2016
£000
-32
4
-12
-40

31 March
2017
£000
-2,183

31 March
2016
£000
270

NOTE 14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:

Current Account (includes impact of transactions in transit)
Instant Access Deposit Account
Imprest Accounts (cash in hand and in bank)

4,023
10
1,850

ACHIEVING FOR CHILDREN CIC - STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2016/17

1,112
30
1,412
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NOTE 15 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade and other payables consist of the following:

Current
Trade payables
Employee leave
Receipts in advance
Taxes (e.g. VAT, National Insurance)

31 March
2017
£000

31 March
2016
£000

5,070
443
168
3,431
9,112

11,768
450
50
2,459
14,727

NOTE 16 PROVISIONS
Short term provisions consist of the following:

£000

Disputed
Invoices
£000

0
44
0
0
44
67
-38
-6
67

0
72
0
0
72
0
-72
0
0

Redundancy

Balance at 1st April 2015
Additional provisions made in 2015/16
Amounts used in 2015/16
Unused amounts reversed in 2015/16
Balance at 1st April 2016
Additional provisions made in 2016/17
Amounts used in 2016/17
Unused amounts reversed in 2016/17
Balance at 31 March 2017
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Total
£000

0
116
0
0
116
67
-110
-6
67
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NOTE 17 OTHER LIABILITIES
The following table contains a breakdown of other current and non-current liabilities (excluding trade
receivables and payables):
31 March
2017
£000

31 March
2016
£000

Finance lease liabilities
Short term loans from parent councils
Provisions
Other liabilities - current

0
21,014
67
21,081

29
12,714
116
12,859

Finance lease liabilities
Pension fund defined benefit liability (see note 5)
Other liabilities - non-current

0
28,219
28,219

0
15,516
15,516

2016/17
£000

2015/16
£000

12
12

12
12

-138
-13
-584
-735

-156
-22
-729
-907

Details of the terms of the short term loans are set out in Note 24.

NOTE 18 FINANCE COSTS AND FINANCE INCOME
Finance costs for the reporting period consist of the following:

Interest receivable on short term cash deposits
Total interest receivable
Interest on short term borrowings from parent councils
Finance lease interest
Net interest expense on defined benefit liability
Total interest payable
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NOTE 19 CORPORATION TAX
The following table shows the tax reconciliation based on IAS12.
2016/17
Accounts
£000
Profit / (Loss) on ordinary activities before tax
Tax on loss on ordinary activities at standard CT rate of
20.00% (PY 20.00%%)
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Adjustments to brought forward values
Amounts charged directly to equity or otherwise
transferred
Capital allowances in excess of depreciation
Other short term timing differences
Defined benefit scheme timing differences
Adjust closing deferred tax to average rate 20.00%
Utilisation of tax losses and other deductions
Deferred tax not recognised
Unexplained difference
Tax charge/credit for the period

%

-2,048

2015/16
Accounts
£000

%

-4,101

-410

20.00%

-820

20.00%

1
0
-2,125

-0.06%
0
103.81%

18
-2

-0.45%
0.05%

1,792

-43.68%

0
0
0
898
-345
1,983
0

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
-43.87%
16.86%
-96.86%
0.00%

0
0
0
345
0
-1,333
0

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

2

-8.42%
0.00%
32.50%
0.00%

0

Deferred Tax Asset
As a Community Interest Company AfC must pay corporation tax on all taxable profits at the domestic effective
tax rate. The Company has reported a loss before tax for the 2016/17 and 2015/16 financial period of £2m and
£4m and so no tax expense has been recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. A small tax
amount of £2,379 is payable in 2016/17 on the interest received by the Company in year. It is not probable that
the Company will make significant taxable profits in the short to medium term and therefore has not recognised
a deferred tax asset in the Accounts. If the Company does make taxable profits in the coming years it will be
able to reduce its initial tax liability by offsetting taxable losses incurred. The amount recognised as a contingent
asset at 31 March 2017 is £5.09m (£3.107m at 31 March 2016).

NOTE 20 NON CASH FLOW ADJUSTMENTS AND CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL
The following tables provide a breakdown of the non-cash transactions recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Statement of Financial Position.

Net changes in working capital:
Change in trade and other receivables (increase)
Change in trade and other payables (decrease)
Total changes in working capital
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2016/17
£000

2015/16
£000

-2,236
-5,615
-7,851

6,606
-3,564
3,042
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Non Cash Flow Adjustments:
Recognition of pension liability transferred with TUPE
Current and past service costs
Net interest on defined benefit liability
Accounts payable and receivable transactions paid out by parent companies
Capitalisation and lease principal
Depreciation
Provisions

2016/17
£000

2015/16
£000

0
4,871
584
0
-29
41
-49

780
5,752
729
0
-20
41
116

5,418

7,398

AfC borrows money from the parent Councils via a revolving credit facility for ongoing operations. The amount
still owed to the Councils under this arrangement is detailed in note 17 to the accounts.

NOTE 21 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company’s related parties include its owners (LB Richmond and RB Kingston), company directors, senior
managers with strategic decision making powers, post-employment benefit plans and others as stated below.
Transactions with the Company’s owners
Achieving for Children is jointly owned by the London Borough of Richmond upon Thames and the Royal
Borough of Kingston upon Thames. The boroughs have influence over major policy decisions and funding. The
Company is contracted jointly by both Councils to provide their children’s services. The Councils also provide
support services and accomodation to the Company and a loan facility of up to £30m. The table below
summarises the key transactions:
LB
Richmond
2016/17
£000

RB
Kingston
2016/17
£000

LB
Richmond
2015/16
£000

RB
Kingston
2015/16
£000

Receipts*
Accrued income
Payments
Accrued expenditure

67,214
11,184
8,765
365

62,652
9,225
8,852
1,174

71,035
7,735
6,886
3,442

64,370
10,020
4,572
3,335

Total Value***

87,528

81,903

89,098

82,297

Other balances:
Borrowing**

10,507

10,507

6,357

6,357

* These figures have not been adjusted for the agency relationship to ensure full disclosure
**Borrowing represents the balance at 31st March. The cashflow statement details physical cash paid and
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received on financing activities
***Transactions are inclusive of VAT
Transactions with schools maintained by the Councils have been excluded as the contract price captures the
value of these transactions. Individual schools are not deemed to have control over the Company.
Transactions with directors and senior management
Directors (including non-executive) and senior management have direct control over the Company’s finance and
operating policies. The table below summarises the remuneration received by these individuals. As a result of
legislative requirements relating to the employment of statutory officers, some members of the Senior
Leadership Team are employed by the parent Councils and seconded to Achieving for Children. The total
remuneration paid has been captured in the table below and includes total remuneration paid by AfC and the
parent Councils. Further details on the remuneration of individual Directors are included in the Director’s
Report.

Short Term Benefits:
Salary
National Insurance
Allowances
Expenses
Post-Employment Benefits:
Defined benefit pension plans
Total Remuneration

2016/17
£

2015/16
£

790,097
99,566
1,359
1,470

833,994
95,706
2,912
1,546

122,700

132,275

1,015,192

1,066,433

During the period directors, senior management or members of their immediate families had relationships /
influence over the organisations detailed in the table overleaf. Organisations have been detailed regardless of
whether transactions occurred with AfC. Where transactions have occurred, the relevant officer or director was
not involved in decision making.
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Transactions in the
period

London Borough of Wandsworth
Barnado’s Children’s Charity
Alexandra Infant School
Coombe Academy Trust – Boys’
Every Child, Every Day
Grey Court School
Coombe Academy Trust – Girls’
Darell Primary School
Social Care Institute for Excellence
Association of Directors of Adult Social Services
Open Box Consulting
David Archibald Consulting
Richmond Theatre Trust
Richmond Pension Board
Orleans House Trust
Adult and Family Court Magistrate
New Line Learning
Future Schools Trust
Thurrock LSCB
Belfast Health and Social Care Board
BBC
Corniche Events
Learning Schools Trust

Amounts owed at
period-end

Total value
of
transactions

Payments
2016/17
£000

Receipts
2016/17
£000

Owed to
2016/17
£000

Owed by
2016/17
£000

2016/17
£000

1,363
296
202
79
111
29
29
54
7
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
-

1,209
0
52
64
0
36
55
41
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
-

91
3
1
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
-

198
0
0
20
0
44
17
3
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
-

2,861
299
255
163
111
109
101
98
7
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
-
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Transactions in the
period
Payments Receipts
2015/16 2015/16
£000
£000
917
401
327
140
76
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
187

185
0
86
66
54
0
0
0
0
3
0
0
0
15

Amounts owed at
period-end

Total value
of
transactions

Owed to
2015/16
£000

Owed by
2015/16
£000

2015/16
£000

263
46
0
134
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
14

109
0
2
9
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
9

1,474
447
415
349
130
0
0
0
0
3
0
0
0
225
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Transactions in the
period

NHS England
Hampton Infant School
Hampton Junior School
Deer Park
Kew Riverside Primary
London Borough of Ealing
St Richard Reynolds Catholic Primary School
St Richard Reynolds Catholic High School
Jubilee Academy
Hollyfield School
Kingston College
Kingston Academy
Richmond Upon Thames College
Sunderland City Council / Total Help For
Children

Total value
of
transactions

Amounts owed at
period-end

Transactions in the
period

Payments
2016/17
£000

Receipts
2016/17
£000

Owed to
2016/17
£000

Owed by
2016/17
£000

2016/17
£000

-

-

-

-

-

683
1
11
0
17
6
5
0
0
218
115
0
49

-

-

-

-

-

0

0 means there are nil transactions with the related party
- means no related party has been declared for financial year

All transactions include VAT
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Payments Receipts
2015/16 2015/16
£000
£000

Total value
of
transactions

Amounts owed at
period-end
Owed to
2015/16
£000

Owed by
2015/16
£000

2015/16
£000

599
29
67
0
24
42
34
214
0
35
2
4
0

44
0
0
0
5
43
0
5
0
32
16
0
89

154
12
0
0
0
18
0
4
0
11
1
7
0

1,480
42
78
0
46
109
39
223
0
296
134
11
138

2

0

2

4
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The Chair of the Board (David Groves) has worked with Grey Court and Coombe Schools during the year. His
wife has been the Chair of Governors at Alexandra Infant School since March 2015 (previously a Governor). The
transactions between AfC and these schools relate to the provison of education services and grant allocations.
A Non Executive Independent Director (Gill Holmes) is the Director for Communications and Policy at Barnardo’s
Childrens Charity, commencing this role in February 2016. AfC has purchased childrens social care services from
Barnardos on both a contractual and spot purchasing basis as well as a range of training provision.
One of the Company’s Non Executive Independent Directors (Jane Spencer) was Chair of Governors for Darell
Primary School. The transactions between AfC and these schools relate to the provison of education services
and grant allocations. She was also trustee of Every Child, Every Day Charitable Academy Trust (ECEDAT). This
charitable trust consists of Grey Court School and Hollyfield School. The transactions with AfC relate to Special
Educational Needs funding.
A Non Executive Independent Director (David Archibald) was the Director for Children’s and Adult Services for
the LB Ealing until the Summer of 2015. He joined the AfC Board in January 2016. AfC both procured and
provided SEN placements from / to LB Ealing during the year. He is also Trustee and Board Member of Social
Care Institute for Excellence. The payments relate to Learning Together Foundation course training delivered to
AfC.
A Council appointed Director to the Board (Cathy Kerr) is the Director of Adult Social Services in Wandsworth.
AfC procured and provided SEN placements during the year.
The Chief Executive (Nick Whitfield) was a Director of the Learning Schools Trust until November 2015. The
transactions with the Learning Schools Trust related to special educational needs placements in Academy
schools managed by the Trust. The Chief Executive was also the Chair of the local governing body for Newline
Learning. There were no transactions between Newline Learning and AfC during 2016/17.
The Deputy Chief Executive (Ian Dodds) has been Chair of the Richmond Theatre Trust Board from 2015/16.
Richmond Theatre Trust occasionally works on grant-funded theatre education initiatives with services in AfC.
He was also an Honarary Treasurer for Orleans House Trust where there is history of occasional venue hire for
learning programmes.
Transactions with post-employment benefit plans
Employees of AfC are members of a number of pension plans. The defined benefit plans (the LGPS) are
separately administered by the LB Richmond and RB Kingston who are also owners of the Company. The
pension funds are treated as separate financial entities and the terms of the benefit plans are prescribed by
regulation. Note 5 to these accounts contains further details of the specific plans and associated figures.

NOTE 22 CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Contingent Liabilities
Contingent liabilities relate to possible expenditure arising from a past event that has not been recognised in
the Statement of Accounts due to the probability that a transfer of economic benefits will not arise, or cannot
be reliably estimated. The possible liability is dependent on the outcome of something happening in the future.
A review is undertaken annually to identify any potential liabilities.
•
Legal Cases / Tribunals / Insurance Claims
As at the 31st March there were a number of tribunals and claims outstanding against the Company. None of
these claims are expected to materially impact the accounts but some could lead to non-trivial damages / costs
in future years should the tribunal rule against AfC. If claims do arise then these will be met by the Company’s
insurance policy (£50k excess) or via in year budgets.
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•
Termination Benefits
The Company must make significant reductions in its cost base over the next three years to achieve contract
price reduction targets set by the contracting Councils. Plans continue to be developed to address these cost
pressures and it is probable that some termination benefits will be paid out to staff as part of these plans. The
Company is not able to estimate these at present but any future liabilities will be met through in year budgets,
contract change control mechanisms and the phasing of reductions in the Company’s cost base.
•
Cost Liability Disputes
There is an ongoing legal case in relation to the responsible authority for the costs associated with the care of a
child who was born but no longer lives in the Local Authority area. The final decision on the responsible Council
is currently with the Secretary of State and represents a potential liability of £88k on social care, plus education
costs that at present cannot be quantified.
In 2015/16 the Company was disputing liability for costs in relation to £52k of invoices received in relation to
education provision for children who require hospital care. The statutory duty for this provision lies with the
Local Authorities, however where AfC, on behalf of the contracting Councils, has not commissioned the
Education the young people have received, there is no legal basis for the costs falling to the Company and
payment has been refused. This issue was resolved during 2016/17 and there are no significant outstanding
invoices under dispute.
Contingent Assets
Contingent assets relate to possible income arising from a past event that has not been recognised in the
Statement of Accounts due to the probability that a transfer of economic benefits will not arise, or cannot be
reliably estimated. The right to the potential asset is dependent on something happening in the future. A
review is undertaken annually to identify potential contingent assets.
•

•
Deferred Tax Asset
As a Community Interest Company AfC must pay corporation tax on all taxable profits at the domestic effective
tax rate. The Company has reported a loss before tax for the 2016/17 and 2015/16 financial period of £2m and
£4m and so no tax expense has been recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. A small tax
amount of £2,379 is payable in 2016/17 on the interest received by the Company in year. It is not probable that
the Company will make significant taxable profits in the short to medium term and therefore has not recognised
a deferred tax asset in the Accounts. If the Company does make taxable profits in the coming years it will be
able to reduce its initial tax liability by offsetting taxable losses incurred. The amount recognised as a
contingent asset at 31 March 2017 is £5.09m (£3.107m at 31 March 2016).

NOTE 23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK
Risk management objectives and policies
The Company is exposed to various risks in relation to financial instruments. The Company’s financial assets and
liabilities are summarised in Note 12. The main types of risks are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Company’s risk management procedures are focused on the unpredictability of financial markets and are
structured to implement suitable controls to minimise these risks.
Market risk analysis
The principle risk that the Company is exposed to is fluctuations in interest rates that can impact on its
operating costs. The Company only has exposure to short term borrowing and deposits that are on variable
interest rate terms with no currency exposure.
As an indication of the sensitivity to interest rates, a change in short term interest rates of 1% would change
finance costs by +/- £170k (£116k for 2015/16), and the impact on the pension liability (of the defined benefit
plan – LGPS) would change the net liability by +/- £23.9 million (£16.6 million 2015/16).
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Credit risk analysis
Credit risk arises if a counterparty fails to discharge an obligation to the Company. The Company is exposed to
credit risk in respect of short term deposits, cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amounts of financial assets recognised at 31 March
2017, as shown in the following table:

Financial assets / Loans and Receivables
Trade and other receivables categorised as Financial Instruments
Trade and other receivables not categorised as Financial Instruments
Cash and cash equivalents

31 March
2017
£000

31 March
2016
£000

24,406
1,952
1,850

21,466
2,656
1,412

28,208

25,534

A significant proportion of trade and other receivables are in respect of public sector entities, which mitigates
the overall risk. Impairment of receivables in 2016/17 was £137k (£40k for 2015/16).
The Company only deals with financial institutions that have high credit ratings and monitors these to avoid risk.
Liquidity risk analysis
Liquidity risk arises if the Company is unable to meet its obligations. The Company is able to borrow from its
owners (the London Borough of Richmond upon Thames and Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames) under a
revolving credit facility agreement. This agreement provides a loan facility of £30m (since 1 April 2014) which
the Company can draw down on to meet its liquidity requirements and also has up to £10m (£10m in 2015/16)
on same-day withdrawal deposit/current accounts to manage day-to-day cash requirements.
The Company manages its liquidity needs through monitoring forecast cash inflows and outflows arising from its
business on a daily and weekly basis and also monitors longer term impacts on its cash flow arising from
changes to its business plan.
The Company is required to submit a Financial Plan at least annually to its owners for their approval that sets
out the Company’s treasury management plans and procedures.
The revolving credit arrangement in place with its owners is regarded as sufficient mitigation against liquidity
risk for the company.

NOTE 24 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped
into Levels of fair value hierarchy. The three Levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to
the measurement, as follows:
Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly
Level 3: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability
The Company holds only the following financial assets and liabilities:
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•
•
•

Cash and cash equivalents
Current borrowings
Trade and other receivables and payables

There are no quoted prices that can be used to measure fair value of these assets and liabilities.
Cash, cash equivalents, trade and other payables are all very short term assets and are assessed as being at fair
value.
Current borrowings are in respect of one loan facility, provided by the owners of the Company (LB Richmond
and RB Kingston). This is a revolving short term loan agreement which is repayable on 31 September and 31
March each year, or earlier ifthe company gives the Councils notice. Interest is 0.5% (one half percent) above
Bank of England Base Rate. The terms of the loan are judged to reflect current market rates and the actual value
of the loan is taken as fair value.
Trade payables are discharged within 30 days and are deemed to be at fair value.
Trade receivables are due within 30 days and are deemed to be at fair value. Receivables not settled within 30
days are amortised in respect of assumed credit losses based on the age of debt.

NOTE 25 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
The Company is jointly owned by LB Richmond and RB Kingston as a company limited by guarantee and is a ‘not
for profit’ organisation registered as a Community Interest Company. It provides benefit to its owners by
providing services to them under contract at economic cost. The Company is not required to provide a financial
return to its owners and has no target for its capital-to-overall financing ratio. The owners of the Company
provide funding for the Company through a short-term loan facility and the Company does not have any other
borrowings or equity.
The amounts managed as capital by the Company for the reporting period under review are summarised as
follows:
31 March
2017
£000

31 March
2016
£000

Cash and cash equivalents

1,850

1,412

Capital

1,850

1,412

Borrowings

21,014

12,714

Overall financing

21,014

12,714

0.09

0.11

Capital-to-overall financing ratio

NOTE 26 POST REPORTING DATE EVENTS
No significant events have occurred between the 31st March reporting date and the date these accounts were
authorised by the Chair of the Board.

NOTE 27 AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
These Financial Statements were approved for submission to Audit by the Director of Finance and Resources on
13 May 2017:
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Lucy Kourpas (CPFA)
Director of Finance and Resources
These Financial Statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 26th June 2017 by:

David Groves
Chair of the Board
3rd July 2017

Lucy Kourpas (CPFA)
Director of Finance and Resources
3rd July 2017
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NOTE 28 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
General principles
Basis of preparation - accounting practices
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as required by the Companies Act 2006. The Accounts summarise the Company’s financial performance
(Statement of Comprehensive Income), equity (Statement of Changes in Equity), financial position (Statement of
Financial Position) and cash flow (Statement of Cashflows) for the period. The Accounts have been prepared on
the historical cost basis.
Changes in accounting policies and prior period adjustments
Prior period adjustments arise either as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material error.
Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for in the current financial period and future periods affected by
the change, and do not result in a prior period adjustment.
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or where the
change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and
economic conditions on the Company’s financial position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it
is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for
the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied.
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening balances
and comparative amounts for the prior period.
Exceptional Items
Exceptional items are those which are separately identified by virtue of their size or incidence to enable a full
understanding of the Company’s financial performance. The nature and amount of these items is disclosed
separately, either on the face of the Statement of Comprehensive Income or in the notes to the accounts,
depending on how significant the items are. The company has not identified any exceptional items on the face
of the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Items Re-classifiable to the Operating Profit or Loss
Where there are items in the Statement of Comprehensive Income that are re-classifiable to the Operating
Profit / Loss from Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure, when certain conditions are met, these will be
disclosed separately on the face of the Statement of Comprehensive Income (within Other Comprehensive
Income). At present the Company has no such transactions.
Accruals of Income and Expenditure
Activity is accounted for in the period that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or received.
In particular:
Income
• Revenue from the sale of goods and services is recognised when the Company transfers the significant risks
and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential
associated with the transaction will flow to the organisation.
• Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Company can measure reliably the
percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential
associated with the transaction will flow to the Company.
Contract income, fees and charges, lettings, grants, donations and other income arise from the provision of
services or the sale of goods or services.
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Expenditure
• Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed. Where there is a gap between the date
supplies are received and their consumption (and the values are material) they are carried as inventories on the
Statement of Financial Position.
• Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are recorded as
expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are made.
Revenue income and expenditure for the year is reported in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Interest
• Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for respectively as income and
expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash
flows fixed or determined by the contract.
Debtor and creditor balances (accruals policy) Where income and expenditure have been recognised but cash
has not been received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Statement of
Financial Position. Where debts may not be settled (i.e. collection is doubtful), the balance of receivables is
written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected.
Exceptions to this accruals policy are made where it would be impractical in terms of time and cost required and
where the effect of not accruing has no material effect on the Company’s accounts. The Company has set a
general de-minimis level for accruals of creditors that are calculated manually at period-end. This level is
reviewed annually and is currently set at £5,000. Two exceptions to this de-minimis rule apply:
•
•

Qualifying expenditure upon which income from third parties is dependent and associated income.
Invoices for substantially the same supply or service that are chargeable to the same service area are
aggregated where their total is over £5,000.

Third Party and Government Grants / Contributions
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, Government Grants, third party contributions and
donations are recognised as due when there is reasonable assurance that:
•
the Company will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and
•
the grants or contributions will be received.
Amounts recognised as due are not credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income until conditions
attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future
economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are
required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must be
returned to the transferor.
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in the
Statement of Financial Position as creditors / receipts in advance. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or
contribution is credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Agency Relationship
Where the Company acts as an agent of the Parent Councils, in paying grant monies to schools, these
transactions are excluded from the Accounts on the basis that the Company is not making decisions about how
the money is spent. The Company is just passporting money based on pre-set criteria, on behalf of a third party.
These transactions are reported in the Accounts of the party who ultimately controls the money (i.e. the
Councils).
Inventories
The Company recognises all inventories (stock) that have a value over £10,000 as at 31 March. The Company
initially recognises inventory when it has control of it and when it expects to have a right to the future economic
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benefits / service potential. All inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Where
there are large numbers of items of inventory that are ordinarily interchangeable, the Company uses the
weighted average cost method of stock measurement. The Company held no material inventories at 31st March
2017.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on notice
of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash with insignificant risk of change in value (this will exclude fixed term deposits as they are not highly liquid
and not readily convertible to cash).
In the Statement of Cashflows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable
on demand.
Employee Benefits
Benefits payable during employment
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the period-end.
They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and nonmonetary benefits for current employees and are recognised as an expense for services in the period in which
employees render service to the Company. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements (or any form
of leave, e.g. time off in lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the period-end which employees can
carry forward into the next financial period. The accrual is made at the salary rates applicable in the following
accounting year, being the period in which the employee takes the benefit. The accrual is charged to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial period to
which they relate.
Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Company to terminate an officer’s
employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy. These
are charged on an accruals basis to the Statement of Comprehensive Income when the Company is
demonstrably committed to the termination of the employment of an officer or group of officers or making an
offer to encourage voluntary redundancy.
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, the amount is recognised on an IAS19 basis
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Post Employment Benefits (IAS19)
Employees of the Company can be members of four separate pension funds:
• The Teachers’ Pension Scheme, administered by Capita Teachers’ Pensions on behalf of the Department for
Education (DfE).
•

The National Health Service Pension Scheme, administered by the Department of Health (DoH)

•

The Local Government Pensions Scheme, administered by the London Borough of Richmond upon Thames

•

The Local Government Pensions Scheme, administered by the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

All schemes provide defined benefits to members, earned as employees who have worked for the Company.
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However, the arrangements for the teachers’ and NHS scheme mean that liabilities for these benefits cannot
ordinarily be identified specifically to the Company. The scheme is therefore accounted for as if it was a defined
contribution scheme and no liability for future payments of benefits is recognised in the Statement of Financial
Position. The employer’s contributions are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period.
The Local Government Pension Scheme
The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme:
•
The liabilities of the LB Richmond and RB Kingston Pension Fund attributable to the Company are
included in the Statement of Financial Position on an actuarial IAS19 basis using the projected unit method – i.e.
an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by
employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc., and projections of
projected earnings for current employees.
•
Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate (based on the indicative
rate of return on 20 year gilts adjusted for credit spread).
•
The assets of each Pension Fund attributable to the Company are included in the Statement of Financial
Position at their fair value:
- quoted securities – current bid price
- unquoted securities – professional estimate
- unitised securities – current bid price
- property – market value
•

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components:
 Service cost comprising:
- current service cost – the increase in the present value of a defined benefit obligation (liabilities)
resulting from employee service in the current period. – allocated to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income
- past service cost – the change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation for employee
service in prior periods, resulting from a plan amendment (the introduction or withdrawal of, or
changes to, a defined benefit plan) or a curtailment (a significant reduction by the authority in the
number of employees covered by a plan). – debited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income
- Any gain or loss on settlement – arising when the Company enters into a transaction that
eliminates all further legal or constructive obligations for part or all of the benefits provided under
a defined benefit plan – debited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income
 Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) - the change during the period in the net defined
benefit liability (asset) that arises from the passage of time - charged to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income
 Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset) comprising:
- actuarial gains and losses – changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting
from: a) experience adjustments (the effects of differences between the previous actuarial
assumptions and what has actually occurred) and b) the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions
charged to Other Comprehensive Income for the period
- the return on plan assets – excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability (asset) – charged to Other Comprehensive Income for the period

Discretionary Benefits
The Company has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of early
retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff, including teachers,
are accrued in the period of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same policies as are
applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme.
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Financial Instruments
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised on the Statement of Financial Position when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are carried at
their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Statement of Comprehensive Income for interest payable are based
on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over the life of the
instrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised.
Financial Assets
Financial assets are classified into two types:
• loans and receivables – assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not quoted in an active
market
• available-for-sale assets – assets that have a quoted market price and/or do not have fixed or determinable
payments. AfC had no available for sale financial instruments in 2016/17.
Loans and Receivables
Loans and receivables are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a
financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised
cost. Annual credits to the Statement of Comprehensive Income for interest receivable are based on the
carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the loans
that the Company has made, this means that the amount presented in the Statement of Financial Position is the
outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income is the amount receivable for the period in the loan agreement.
Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that payments due
under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a charge made to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. The impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and
the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.
Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of an asset are credited or debited to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
Foreign Currency Translation
Where the Company enters into a transaction denominated in a foreign currency, the transaction is converted
into sterling at the exchange rate applicable on the date the transaction was effective. Where amounts in
foreign currency are outstanding at the period-end, they are reconverted at the spot exchange rate at 31 March.
Resulting gains or losses are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Relationships and Interests in Companies and Other Entities
Achieving for Children is jointly owned by the LB Richmond upon Thames and RB Kingston upon Thames. The
Company will disclose the proportion of profit / loss and net assets that is attributable to each Council. The
parent Councils will in turn consolidate their interest in the Company as part of their group accounts.
Where the Company assesses that its relationship with another entity is classified as a subsidiary, associate, or
joint venture it will present its accounts to reflect these interests as follows:
Subsidiary
•

Company controls the
financial and operating

Associates
•

Company has significant
influence over the

Joint Ventures
•
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Subsidiary

Associates

activities of that entity
and benefits from this
control.
•

Line by Line
consolidation - Where
material, the Company
will consolidate 100% of
all transactions and
balances into the
Company’s Accounts and
the Company will
present both single
entity and group entity
accounts.

Joint Ventures

operations of another
entity.

•

entity

Equity Method –
The interest is presented as an investment and
adjusted each period for the current share of the net
assets and the relevant share of profit or loss will be
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income

Non Current Assets
The Company recognises two categories of non-current asset:
• Tangible - Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one
financial period
• Intangible - Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled
by the Company as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) are capitalised when it is expected
that future economic benefits or service potential will flow to the Company
The Company has set the following de-minimis limits for the recognition of non-current assets.
•
Land and buildings - £50,000
•
Vehicles, plant and equipment - £10,000
•
Intangible assets - £10,000
Tangible
Recognition

Intangible

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement is capitalised on an accruals
basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential
to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance)
is charged as an expense when it is incurred.
Where an asset consists of various components with different useful lives these are
recognised separately.

Measurement

Assets are initially measured at cost,
comprising the purchase price and any
costs attributable to bringing the asset to
the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Assets are then
carried in the Statement of Financial

Intangible assets are measured initially at
cost. Amounts are only revalued where
the fair value of the assets held can be
determined by reference to an active
market. Increases in valuations are
matched by credits to the Revaluation
Reserve to recognise unrealised gains.
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Tangible

Intangible

Position at fair value, determined as the Reductions in value are written off
amount that would be paid for the asset in against relevant balances in the
its existing condition. For non-property revaluation reserve and then to the
assets that have short useful lives or low Statement of Comprehensive Income.
values (or both), depreciated historical
•
cost basis is used as a proxy for fair value.
•

Assets are revalued sufficiently regularly to
ensure that their carrying amount is not
materially different from their fair value at
the period-end. Increases in valuations are
matched by credits to the Revaluation
Reserve to recognise unrealised gains.
Reductions in fair value are written off
against relevant balances in the
revaluation reserve and then to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Depreciation

•

Depreciation is provided for on all
•
tangible assets by the systematic
allocation of their depreciable
amounts over their useful lives. The
Company applies the straight line
method of depreciation and the useful
life is determined by a relevant expert.
Depreciation is charged to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income
each period and writes down the
value of the asset on the Statement of
Financial Position. A full years
depreciation is charged in the period
of acquisition.

The depreciable amount of an
intangible asset is amortised over its
useful life to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. A full years
depreciation is charged in the period
of acquisition

Leases (IAS17)
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership from the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered separately for
classification. Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in
return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on
the use of specific assets. Achieving for Children does not have legal title to any non-current assets and as such
would not partake in the leasing out of non-current assets.
Finance Leases
Non-Current Assets held under finance leases are recognised on the Statement of Financial Position at the
commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present value of the
minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the
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lessor. Initial direct costs of the Company are added to the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on
entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the
periods in which they are incurred.
Lease payments are apportioned between:
• a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the asset – applied to write down the lease liability, and
• a finance charge debited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income
Non-current assets that are assessed as a finance lease are recognised on the Company’s Statement of Financial
Position as a Non-Current Asset and depreciated over the shorter of the lease term or estimated useful life via
an annual charge to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
In recognising finance leases, the Company applies the following de-minimis levels:
•
Land and buildings - £50,000
•
Vehicles, plant and equipment - £10,000
•
Intangible assets - £10,000
Operating Leases
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income as an expense in
the period.
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Company a legal or constructive obligation
that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. For instance, the Company may be involved in a court case that
could eventually result in the making of a settlement or the payment of compensation. Provisions are charged
as an expense to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period that the Company becomes aware of
the obligation, and are measured at the best estimate at the Statement of Financial Position date of the
expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties. When
payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Statement of Financial Position.
Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial period – where it becomes less than probable
that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the
provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service.
Redundancy Costs
The Company provides for redundancy costs at the point that it is demonstrably committed (cannot retract the
offer). If a notification of redundancy has been issued before 31 March but the amount has not yet been paid, a
liability is recognised in the accounts.
Contingent Liabilities
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Company a possible obligation whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Company. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise
be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Statement of Financial
Position but disclosed in a note to the Accounts.
Contingent Assets
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Company a possible asset whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within
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the control of the Company. Contingent assets are not recognised in the Statement of Financial Position but
disclosed in a note to the accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or
service potential.
Taxation
Corporation Taxation
The Company is liable to pay Corporation Tax on all taxable profits. Where this applies, the tax will be
separately identified on the face of the Statement of Comprehensive Income and profits / losses will be shown
gross and net of taxation. Any amounts owed to the HMRC at the period-end will be recognised as a creditor /
debtor on the Statement of Financial Position.
Where the Company makes taxable losses / has temporary differences, it will recognise a deferred tax asset on
the Statement of Financial Position only where it is probable that the Company will make taxable profits and pay
Corporation Tax in the foreseeable future. If taxable profits are not probable the potential deferred tax asset
will be recognised as a contingent asset and disclosed within the notes to the Accounts.
Value Added Taxation
VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty’s Revenue
and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income. The net amount owed or owing to the HMRC at the
Statement of Financial Position Date will be recognised as a net creditor / debtor on the Statement of Financial
Position.
Post Reporting Date Events
Events after the Statement of Financial Position date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that
occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Financial Statements is authorised for
issue. Two types of events can be identified:
•

those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period – the Financial
Statements are adjusted to reflect such events (an adjusting event).

•

those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period

The Financial Statements are not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a
material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect (a
non-adjusting event).
Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Financial Statements.
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ACCRUALS
Amounts charged to the accounts for goods or services received during the period for which payments
have not yet been made, and for income due, which has not yet been received.
BALANCE SHEET / STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A statement of the Company’s assets and liabilities at the 31 March (Statement of Financial Position date).
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
Expenditure on the acquisition or enhancement of assets that have a significant value and a useful life
beyond one year.
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash is represented by notes and coins held by the Company and deposits available on demand. Cash
equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value e.g. instant access accounts.
COMMUNITY INTEREST COMPANY
A Community Interest Company is a special type of Ltd Company which exists to benefit the community
rather than the private shareholders. Its primary objectives are social objectives and any surpluses are reinvested into the organisation.
CREDITORS OR TRADE PAYABLES
Organisations and individuals to whom the Company owes money.
CURRENT ASSETS
These are assets that will be consumed within the next accounting period (i.e. less than one year).
Examples are stock, cash and receivables.
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Those amounts which will become payable or could be called upon in the next accounting period (i.e. less
than one year).
DEBTORS or TRADE RECEIVABLES
Organisations and individuals who owe money to the Company.
DEDICATED SCHOOLS GRANT
A ring-fenced, Central Government Grant paid to Councils by the Department for Education to fund
education services within the boroughs. A significant proportion is devolved to schools on a formulaic
basis.
DEPRECIATION
The writing down of the value of a fixed asset in the Statement of Financial Position in line with its expected
useful life.
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Salaries, wages, paid annual leave, paid sick leave, pension benefits and termination benefits.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another.

ACHIEVING FOR CHILDREN CIC - STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2016/17

Page 78

GLOSSARY OF TERMS
FINANCE LEASE
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee.
NON CURRENT ASSETS
These are assets that are likely to be in use by the Company for more than one year, such as property, plant
and equipment.
IAS19
Accounting standard requiring the recognition by an authority of the attributable share of the assets and
liabilities of pension funds with which it is associated showing the employer’s commitment to increase
contributions to make up any shortfall in attributable net assets, or its ability to benefit (via reduced
contributions) from a surplus in the scheme, even though the fund retains title to the assets and the
responsibility to pay pensions.
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A Core Financial Statement that provides a summary of the resources generated and consumed by the
Company in the period.
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS)
The regulations under which the accounts are published. A set of international accounting standards stating
how particular types of transactions and other events should be reported in financial statements. IFRS
are issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.
INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Intangible fixed assets that are likely to be in use by the Company for more than one year are recognised
where there is no ‘physical’ asset but the Company controls future economic benefits from the asset. For
example computer software.
NET BOOK VALUE
An asset or liabilities original book value net of any accounting adjustments such as depreciation.
NET REALISABLE VALUE
The value of an asset that can be realised upon the sale of the asset, less any costs associated with either
the eventual sale or the disposal of the asset in question.
OPERATING LEASE
This is a type of lease under which lease rentals are paid for the use of the asset over the period of the
lease. The asset remains the property of the lessor and has to be returned at the end of the lease.
OUTTURN
This is the final expenditure and income in any financial period. Outturn reports usually compare the final
net expenditure (expenditure less income) against the relevant budget.
PROVISIONS
Amounts set aside for liabilities and losses which are likely to occur but where the exact amount or timing is
uncertain but can be reasonable estimated.
TANGIBLE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Tangible fixed assets are ‘physical’ assets that provide future economic benefit and are likely to be in use by
the Company for more than one year.
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TERMINATION BENEFITS
Amounts payable to employees as a result of a decision by the Company to terminate an officer’s
employment prior to normal retirement age or an officers decision to accept voluntary redundancy.
THIRD PARTY PAYMENTS
Items reported under Third Party Payments for management accounts include contract payments made
throughout the year. Examples include payments to third parties for independent child placements, Special
Education Needs placements and other contract payments.
TRANSFER OF UNDERTAKINGS (PROTECTION OF EMPLOYEMENT) REGULATIONS 2006 (TUPE)
A part of UK labour law, protecting employees whose business is being transferred to another business.
The regulations aim to protect employees employment and most significant terms and conditions.
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